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IK THE UNITED STATES CISTRICT COURT, WORTHERN
BISTRICT OF ILLINOIS, EASTERN DIVISION
KIMREALY LYMCH, ]
Plaintictr, )
-5 1 No. LO=CV=5707
VILLAGE ©F HAWTHORN WOODS, )
an Illinois municipal H
corporation; MAYOR JOSEPH )
HANCIKO, in his individual )
capacity: PAMELA NEWTOM, ]
in her individual capagity: )
DONNA LOBRITO, in her }
individual capacity; )
XRISTIN HAZENAS, in her 1
individual capacity: H
TRUSTEE MELL MORGRK, in H
his individcal ¢apacity: )
FOPMER TALSTEE RAVID ANSANI, )
in nis individual capacity; 1 (CAZTION CONTINUED
KELLY CCRRIGAH, in het 3 DEPCSITICN OF
individaal capacity: STEVE b KIMBERLY LYNCH}

i¥35, in his individual )

w
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PRESENT :

HUGHES SCCOL PTERS RESNTCK & DYM, LTD.,
(70 West Madison Street, Sulte 4000,
Chicagoe, Illinois 60602,

(312) 604-2640), by:

MR. TERRENCE J. MORAN,

appeared on behalf of the Plaincift,

QUERREY & HARRCW, LTO.,

[:75 Weat Jackson Boulevard, Suite 1600,
Chicage, [llincis 40604-2827,

(312) S40-7000}, by:

MR. DOMINICK L. LANZITO,

4appeared on behalf af the Dalendants.

ALSO PRESENT:
Mz, Darra lLeba‘eag
Ms. Kristin Fazenas;

Mayoe Jesenn Mancino.

FRPCATRD BY:  CATRICE . PRINCE, ISR

C3R flo. §4-0037¢5.
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Kimberly Lynch
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Paga 2
1 The depositian ot KIMBERLY YICTCRIA LYNCH.
2 called for examinaticr, taken pursuant to the
3 Federal Rules of Civil Precedure of the United
q States District Courts pertaining to the taking of
%5 depositions, taken before CATRICE M. PRINCE, CSR
& Mo. B4-003765, a MNatary Public within ard for the
7 County of Coox, State of Illinois, and a Certified
8 Shorthand Reporter of sald state, at Suite 1600,
9 175 West Jacksen Boulevard, Chicage, Illineis, on
10 the Oth day of Novaember, 2011, commencing ac
11 10:16 a.m.
12
13
14
15
15
17
18
.9
20
21
22
23
24
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t IWHEREUPOH, Lhe wilness wod duiy
2 SWOrLn. }
3 HR. LANZITO: &nd just before we begin, I
4  tendered to Mr. Maran documents Bates=-stamped QIf -~
5 ¥H. MORAN: -- 139% to 1525,
3 MR, LANZITO: -- to 1525. Like I said, they
7 wen't be relevant for today's depesition.
8 KIMBERLY VICTGRIA LYNCHE,
9 called as a witness herein, having been firsc dely
10 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
11 EXAMTIHATION
12 BY MR. LAKZITI:
e Q. ¥a‘am, could you please state and spell
14 your name for the record.
15 A, Kimperly, K-i-m-b-c¢c-r-1-y, Victoria,
16 Yei-g-L-a-r-i-2, Lynch, L-y-n-c-h,
i7 MR, LAMZITO: Let the record reflect thap
18 i3 the deposition ol Hs. Ximbusly Lynch i tae
13 matier of Kimberly Lynch versus The Village of
20 Hewthorn Woods, &t al., wurrently pending in the
21 Hurtherr Discreer of Tiliqeis, Zastern Division.
2z It will be conducted in accordance with
2% tke Faderal Rales ol Civil Zrocedure, 30d a1l other
21 icable igcal Rules.

18, LEGAL
(M 2p23

LEGAL SLPPFORT
(312) 2)6-B352
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Fage 3 Page 6
BY MR. LANZ1TO: 1 question; E'Lll in tuzn allew you to finish your
2 Q. How, Ms. Lynch, have you ever given a 2 answer. Talg envugh?
3 deposition belare? a A Yes.
4 A Yes. 4 Q. If at any time ycu haven't completed
S c. Okay. Have you ever given a deposition 5 your answer and I begin to ask yoa another
6 in Federal Court? 6 question, can you just lat me know and 1'1]1 aliow
7 AL I don't remember. 7 yun te cocmpiete your answer.
Q. Well, I'm sure ¥r. Moran went cver some 3 A Tes.
of the ground rules. Just to make sure that the Q. Additionally, depositions tead to get
record is clear and to makes sure this goes more 10 conversational, so it's important that only oae of
smoothly, T am going to just go over a few ground L1 us talk at a time, and it's important that you al=o
rules real fasc. Okay? 12 ton't use gestures, neds of the head, uh-huh,
A Tes, 13 uhn-uhn because the court reporter can't accurately
Q. I[f at any time I ask you a questizn and 14 transctibe those gestures. Oxay?
it dozsn't make sense or you dern't understand it, 15 A, Tes.
van you please let me know? 16 Q. ‘You might wart to use some sther
A Yoz, 17 gediaices bug --
Q2. LI you amswer a guestion, ['l1] presume 18 A I will leave those for Terry.
that you urcerstccd the queszion as I posed i, 19 MR, MOFRAN: Yoaur answers have te be in wosds.
Zalr encugh? 20 RY MR. LANZITO:
A, Fatr. 21 <. Additicnally, Hz. Moran migrL object
[ And as you can see, the court repeorter 22 feom Lire te time, but that's his way of praserving
is taking down everything Lhat we say, so there's 23 the record. Unless he instructs ysu £o answer --
twe impercant poirts: First, iet me finish my 24 Or NOL £Q &NSW=I. ¥ul #i.. NIVC TO answer che
L. S LEGAL SUPPORT U. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
(312) 236-B352 (302) 236-R352
Kimberly lLynch Kimberly Lynch
November 8, 201F November §, 2011
fage 7 Page B8
question. Fair encugh? 1 A. Her with counsel.
2 A, Yes. 2 Q. Ukay. Did you review any docurcncs when
3 2. Okay. And from time o time you may 3 you met with counsel?
need to take a break to either conter with your 4 A, Yes.
5 counsel or just te use the restroom; that's fine, 5 Q. What documents did you review, if you
4 but you will have to answer any questicns currently s remember?
1 pending before we vake a break. Fair enough? ! A Just socumenes that had been provided by
k] A, Yes. 8 the Village to my attorney.
Q. Okay. Just a few questions I have 1o 9 Q. And how long did you meet when you
ask of all depenents, so please don't take any 10 revigwad Lhese deocurents?
cffense. Are you currently on any medications thak 11 AL Approximately one hour.
12 Q. Okay. Amd T assume that was angther day

would impeic your ability to recstl the events that

are subject of your complaint? 13 3ince you arrived separately?

A. Ho. 14 A Yes.
Q. Okay. Dz you have any mental oc 15 MR. HORAM: ([t was Sunday.
16 THE WITHESS: Eetwean Bear games.

physical corditicns that would impair your ability
to teTal. Lhe sgveal: Lhat are subject to your 1w BY MR. LAHZITO:
cerplaine? 1% Q. Other than Mr. Moran and his law ficm.
AL te. % did you sgeak with anyone else regarding your
Q. Tn -he past tern years, have you been 20 depasilion Faday?
convicied of & felery or a misdemeanor? 2% AL Ho -- well, excuse me, | agslsgize. Ny
AL LI 22 Ausizand,
22 2. Just to tell hip yeu w2re goming,

2. qkay. rat did you do in preparation

Zor yowuy decesicion btoday? L] vorrest?

U5 LEGAL SUPIrORT TS LECGAL SUPPONT
1312) 236-8332 (Vh2) 256
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1 A Yes.
2 [+8 Kow, ma'am, I an just going to go
3 tkrough a lictle kackground so we have it for the
4 record. What is the highest level of educatien you
S have completad?
] A Northweszern University, graduated 1981,
? Q. And what degree did you graduate with?
8 A. Bachelor's of sclence in elementary
9 education.
10 2. And did you seek any postgraduate work?
11 A Nct for that degree, no.
12 Q. Qkay. What type of postgraduate work
13 did you seek?
14 A. Well, when [ was an insuranco agent, a
15 cacu.
16 0. Ard what does CTPCU meas Fer the record?
17 A IL*s biren 2 while, Certified DProperty
1€ Casvalty Underwriter.
le i+ And when did you chlain 1bat?
22 AL T didn'c finish iz. [ was just i
21 said sezexing so...
22 Q. 80 is the kighest level of educaiion you
23 acrually cempleted was Northwestern Universicy?
74 A Correctk.
U. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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L Woods?
2 A 15 years.
3 Q. How lorg have you been married?
1 A. 24.
5 2. Congratulations.
G A. Thank you.
? Q. Starting upon your graduation ir 1081, I
3 just want to go through a brief work history for
9 you so Lf you could give me the first Jeb follewing
1¢ your qraduation in 1481, what was it?
11 A Hy very first ¢ne was Dar Allen
12 Reinsurance downtown, and it's D-a-r, A-1-l-g-n
13 feirsurance.
14 [+9 Aad what did you do thare?
15 M Enkry levei clerical.
10 0. And how leng did you do that jze?
17 A Several years. [ bolfeva it was about
is TWO Years.
1 Q. Wkai position did you nave aftar fa:
20 Aller Be:innuranze?
2l A, Taen I went o Wworx for o M., and it's
22 IH. Fergisn anrd again anothar insurance positicn
23 in Zvanszon, Illineois.

2. Anud higw Longg o oy werk tpere?

2age 10
1 <. Do yol have any other -- [ krow this is
2  a certain license or designation, have you obtained
3 any other ce=rtificatiens or licenses sirce
q Horthwescern University in 19917
E L Met that I can recall.
& Q. So no other prefessicnal licenscs?
? A Cocrect. HWell, aciually now that you
8 menticn it, [ was an insurance agent so I was a
g licensed pregerty and casualsy underwriter $o I was
10 licensed for chat.
il Q. pad do you recall when is the last time
12 you were a licensed insurance agent?
13 A. Prior to the Village when [ was hired so
14 2007 approximately.
15 Q. Dad you just let your license lapse?
16 A. ¥aah. Ycu have to have coniinuing
17 erucation LR oraer to ksep yoiur license., and I
18 wasn't operalirg 23 a certified -- § was not an
19 LnsuFarce agent s¢ - Lot wy license lapse.
20 Q. Oxay. how, ate yo) macried?
21 A Yes,
22 Q. Ard where de vo) currently reside?
23 A. Hawbrhern dzods.
24 Q. How long have yos itived in Hawthorn
L. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
(312) 23h-8352
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1 A, Probably a couple of years.
2 Q. And were you an insurance agent at
1 either of the locations?
1 A. [ was getting there. Heither one of
5 them requivred me ta be licenseod.
6 Q. Were you also at -~ at J.H. Fexquson,
T were yeu also handling clerical-type work?
] R. It was more advanced. [C Was a step up
b trom clerical. It was more uncerwriting.
10 Q- And then after J.H. Fergusen?
11 A, Dann, D-a-u-n, Brethers in Horthbreok,
1z Illirois.
13 Q. D-a-p-n?
L4 A. Un-huh.
15 C. Rrothers?
1% A Righzo.
1% Q. And owheh did you o ab Bann Arcthers?
13 A I waz a cemmer~ial oadeewriter, and I
19 wor<ed with kLssell Gann.  Ha was my senio:
20 supervisar.
21 2. i3 an insurance agency’
el Al Tas, L s, [ no lenger exists nodw.
22 [='s now Mesirow Financial.
21 2. How lonyg dic you aitk T Arothers?

GAL SUPPORT
(X1I) 236-¥352
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1 A Let see. &hen my son Andy was born so
2 *91, no, Andy was '85, s0 four years =- actually [

3 don't think that's right hccause wair a second. It

4  was about three years. Sarry.

8 2- After Dann Brothers, what did you do?

6 A. Retired alightly to raise my two kids

K for a while, and themn went back te ‘psurance, and I
8 worked for Ken Erickson Agency. It's X-e-n,

9 Eri¢kson, E-r-i-c-k-s-o-n in Parrington, Illinois.
19 1 don't believe they are in existence any longer.
11 Q. What did you de for them?

12 A Underwriting, commercial underwriting.
13 I was able to do that part-time, and it was close
14 to here 50 basically the same thing I was deing

15 tefore.

14 0. Do you recall whigh vears you worked
17 there?

18 Al That was twe ycars? 30 that was *86 to
19 '88.
20 2, How rany years were you --
21 AL I am sorry.
22 2. -- raising youz ¢kildren?
21 A Waiz a secord. 1 got =y kids ages all
21 mix4d up because Ardy was '2L -- no, '83. vYeah, iz
1L 5 LEGAL SUPPOItY
{312) 136-RI52
Kimberly Lynch
Nevember 8, 2011
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1 A I wasn't able to work there.
2 Q. Frem what was your next job after 19387
3 A, Ela Soccec.
q LN And what did you do at Ela Soccer?
5 A Ciecleal, administrative assiastoant, I
6 den't know, whatever you want to call it.
7 Q. And how lony were you an ddminishrdbive
4  assiscant?
9 A. Two years, two and a half years.

10 Q. Who were your supervisors at the Ela

11 socger Club?

12 AL Supervisor, the president of Lhe club so

12 it weuld be -- originally it was Hugh Hoftman and

14 then Adrienne ¥irgilio, and 1 worked then with

15 Cijon.

145 MR. HORANW: Could you spell those last two

1? nAmes,

18 THE WITWESS: V-i-r-g-l-l-i-o.

19 BY e, LAKZLIC:

20 a Aned yor said what wan tree last ra-e?

Zl A Tony Ji‘fen. And It's D-i-j-z-n.

23 2. At i your wwo == whith twe ind 2 alrl
23 years «id you worx two and a nalf zalendar years?

24 £ 'U) to approximately UL

1L S LEGAL SEPPOIRE
(312) 1363352

Kimberly Lynch
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1  was '$1. "8% to '5i at Ken Erickson. { should
2 have krought my resume. It would have made it
3 easzier.
4 Q. Thaen 1991, where did you go?
5 L T then went to work far Aleckson Agency
6 in Mundelein.
7 MR. MORAN: Fow do you spell Aleckson?
8 THE WITHESS: A-l-e-cr-k-g=a-n.
9 BY MR. LAKZITO:
10 Q. Okay., W%hat did you do at Aleckson?
11 A. Same thing, cemmercial underwriting.
12 Q- Cid you have to work under a person that
13  was certified in commercial underwriting?
14 A. Andy Aleckson. Ardy and his crother
1% Bob, and Andy is ro lorger with us.
16 Q. And how long did you work at Aleckson?
17 Al Lrkrl 2992 and Laen we moved overseas so
ML I was retires.
1% Q. How leng were you oversesas?
2¢ n, Tarae ynars,
2% Q. So Erem '95 to '9E7
22 A Tes.
23 2. Did you have arny jcos while you were
24 averseas?
LL S LEGAL SUPPORT
(312} 2MG6-K352
Kimberly Lynch
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1 Q. Kow, with the insurance companies, [
2 know you moved to a bunch of them. Were you ever
1 termipated from any of Lhose companies?
4 A. ¥es, actually Dann Brothers 1 was, yes.
5 Q. And why were you terminated?
[ A Lack of performarnce in the sales
T capacity, They had promoted me 1o 4 sales
8 position, ard I wasn't able to genarate enough
9 leads.
10 - Al what about the eother insurance
il agencies?
12 A Mo, those waite all basicatly higher paid
13 positions closer-to-home-type things so they were
14 egiitable moves.
15 Q. Undersiood.
15 How, what about with the Ela Soccar
17 Club?
18 AL I was terrinated Irem them.
B 2. And why ware you terminated?
26 AL Far overpaying., For averpayina myself.
2% 0. ‘Whan ycu say everpaying yourself, whar
22 do you mean?
23 e It was an beourly positicn, and La ozder
21 e go into th: ADP system, which [ was tunning che

WS BEGAL SUPMORRE
(312) 23n-B352
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1 ADP system, [ put 20 hours, a flat 20 hsurs a week
2 in, and [ sheuld have been putting my hours in; but
3 it came out te 20 hours a week. 5o there was some
4 discussion about that.
5 Q. And who was your supervisor at the time?
[ A, Adrienne Virgilio.
7 Q. Co you have her contact phore nunber?
] A, I have not seen her ir years. [ do not.
9 Q. Do you krow where she livas?
10 A. 1 believe still in -- well, actually
11 it’'s net Hawthorn Wocds. It's unincerporated Lake
12 Counky.
13 Q. So as an adminpistracor, you were in
Id charge af payroll and the Ela Sogcer Club's
15 checkbook?
15 A. Yes.
17 2 Was there anyone Lhat had direat
18 supcrvigion over you cn a day-to-day basis ar the
19  soccer club?
29 A, tic.
21 2. And did you dezermine or were you a
22 to determine how much you ova:pald yeurself?
23 kW Ho.
24 Q. Did you ever write a check or
Ll 8. LEGAL SUPPORT
(32 2)6-R352
Kimberly Lyach
November 8, 3011
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1  probably 450, somewhere in that vicinity.
2 llonestly, those are approximatiens.
3 Q. And thabt's per season?
4 A. Yes,
] Q. Per child?
6 A Fer child.
7 Q- Hew many seasons are there in a soccer
[:] year forgive me?
9 A. Two.
10 Q. Back in 2003, 2004, did youa have any
11 childzen participating in like travel soccer?
2 A, Yes.
13 Q. And thal would have been approximately
id now much per year if you can recall?
19 A. 1200, plus 900, 2,000, 2,100, sorewhers
14 in rhat vicinizy.
17 [+ Annually?
18 A.
19 Q. And hiw would yer gay? Would is be per
20 season, you wuuld pdy Lhe sovcer clubs?
21 he Yep, and thers was installmerc billing,
22 3. Haw, L'm going to ass yor, aid you ever
23 rake a4 paytent of 53,025 ra the Ela Siscer Tlub?
21 Ly Tes.

U S LEGAL SUPFORT
(312 236-3352

Page 1
i reirbursement checx to the Fla Seccer Club for the
2 amount they allege you ovezpaid?
3 Al Ho.
4 Q. Did you have children in the Ela Seccer
5 Club while you were erployed?
6 A Yas.
7 Q. How many children Lhree?
8 A Three.
9 Q. And I believe you still have children in
Hyl the Zla Seceer Club?
11 A. Yes. WRell, during the summer months, my
12 son is, yes.
13 Q. Lo yeu recall back in 2000, you said yeu
id were terminated in 20022
15 A, Yeah, somewhere around there, yes.
16 Q. 20 you recall what your fees or dues
17 were to the Ela Seccer Club Zor your children‘s
18 participation?
i A, My dacghter Er:n was approximately 540.
20 She only playea rec. secocr.,  You looked shacked.
21 2. And tnat's per year or pe: month?
2z A, That's per season arcl iL might have gcne
21 s te B5 semetime in there, but arysay it was 43
21 for that. Sean was probably 45C, and Andy was
UL S, LEGAL SUPPORT
(312) 236.3352
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1 - And when was thac?
2 A That was after I was terminated.
3 Q. And why did you make thakt payment?
4 A. Because I had not keen paying my fees to
5 Ela Soccer for my children's soccer.,
6 ¥R. MORAM: What was the amount, Dominick?
7 MR. LANZITO: 83,023,
8 3Y MR, LANZITO:
9 0. And how many years were you not paying
10 che Ela Seccer Club?
11 A It was probably two in the scheme of
1z things.
i3 Q. And were you the secretary for the
14  organizatien during the two years you weren't
15 paying?
16 A Yes.
17 Q. Has that addressea with a Cconversation
18 with Vitgilio as well?
19 AL tam szrry.  Can you rephrase that?
200 don't wnoerstand Lhe gaestion.
21 2. he overdue membaership foes for the ElLa
22 Soccer Clus, were those issues zlse slscussed wita
23 Mdriene Yicoilio?
21 A Ho.

LS LEGAL SUPPORT
{312) 236-8152
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1 Q. Gnly the back wages or the cverpaymens
2 af wages?
3 A, vas.
4 Q. And when did Adrienne VYirgilie come to
5 you regarding the overpayment of your salary?
5 A. Oh, she never did.
7 Q. Who cortacted you regarding overpayment
8 of salary?
5 A. Don Callender.
1Q Q. Hew do you spell his last name?
11 A, C-a-1-l-e-n and I think it's d-e-r.
12 0. And what was Don Callender's pesiticn
13  with tihe Ela Soccer Club?
14 A, I'm unsure what it was at the time. [
15 think he was president »f the travel soccer side of
16 things.
i 2. 50 is there like a houds league
18 presizent, and then a travel leaque president?
12 A Yeah, and then thzre is an overai.
20 sresident.
21 Q. How, was Adrienne V:irgilioc the overall
22 president?
3 AL Yos.
24 Q- And Mr. Bijon, was he an overalil
(LS LEGAL SUPPORT
{312) 236-3352
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Page 23
1 with him at that point?
2z L Quite friendly.
3 Q. Did yeur ¢hildren play together?
4q A Ho. He haa two girls.
5 [+ How you said Don Callender, the
& cresident of the “ravel soccer league or soccer
7 division, contacted yeou?
8 AL Yes. Fe asked [or a meeting.
9 Q. And do you recall when the meeting was?
10 A No, [ do nct.
11 Q. Aho was wresent -- did you have the
12 meeting?
i AL Yes.
1d Q. And whe was present {or that meeting?
15 A, Jon.
18 2. Anyone clso?
17 A Ho.
14 . Where did the meseting take place?
1% A The Ela Library.
0 2. And shere 13 taat logased?
21 AL Oowntewn Lake Antich.
2z [ “a3 tais lixe a private reom or was it
23 Sut a1 tha opan?
21 A It wag in 1 private rpooo

Page 22
1 president as well?
2 A AfLer Adriennc.
3 Q. Were you terminated prier to Mr. Dijon
4 stapping in as president of Lhe Tla Soccer Club?
5 AL Yes.
6 G. And in what capacity did you work with
T  Mr. Lijon at the Ela Soccer Club?
] A. I did net. [ rever worked fer him ax
k] the Ela Soccer Club.
10 Q. Was he just ancther parent at the cime
11 that had children in the arganization?
12 A, He did, yes.
13 0. And was that at the same time you were
14 empleyed by the Zla Svecar Club?
15 A Can you rephrase that again?
18 Q. Di@ Br. Dijon -- strike that.
17 While you were werking at the Zla Soccer
18  Clubk, dicd Mz. Dijen have ch:ildren participating in
14 the Ela Soccer Slun?
20 A Yes, he did.
21 2. 50 prier to your terminatiorn, fic yon
22 knzw Mr. Bijen?
23 A Yes.
24 2. How would you descrire your relacienship
LS. LEGAL SUTPORT
(317) 236-8)52
Kimberly Lynch
November 8, 2011
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1 2. And what, 1f anychiag, do you recall
2 ¥r. Callender stating to you?
3 A Basically that the fees -- or not the
4 fecs. Tt nad noching 1o do with the fees. That T
5 nad over -- that they had noticed that I was paying
a myself consistently 20 hours, and that alse while [
7 was ch vacation, [ was paid as well, s0 kecause I
a was paying myselZ a salary. I shculdn't have been
9 paid. I was an houzly w@age. T shouldn't have baen
10  paid for my vacaticn time, and that was ic.
i Q. fnd what, if aaything, did you say to
12 him in reszense ko thakt agcusasien?
13 A I completely underscood, ardl he said we
14 just ask thar you re&iqn and thal was it.
15 Q. I may have asked you this, when is the
15  last Sime you spoke to HMr. Callender?
17 . ['ve seen Rim ¢n oceasisn at 3o0cer and
18 football games, but I haven't nad a coaversation
19 wilh nim sa we're Just o dial.
20 ;. 4 did Lhay ever caleulaze the amount
21 0I acndys ot thoe overpayment!?
2z No.
21 <. uere vou ever asked to resian in
21 sxchange fer them net pressing ehargod ajuinst youl

L5 LEGAL SUPPORT
1312) 236-8252
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1 A, Ko.
2 Q. Did danyona ¢t bthe Ela Soccer Club
3 organizaticn aver state that they were going to
4 press c¢harges against yeu because of the
3  overpayment?
& LB Ho.
7 Q. Did anyone at tre Ela Ssccer Club sver
g tell you that they were going tc press charges
9 dgainst you for the fallure to pay the membership
io fees?
11 A Nz,
12 Q. Did you ever talk e hdrienne Virgilie
13 regarding the overpayment of salary to yourself?
14 B No.
15 Q. And did you ever talk s Adrienne
14 v¥irgilico about the ovtstand:ng rermkership dues?
17 A Ho.
18 Q. Did the fact that you overpaid your
lu salary ever leak oub Lo any of the other parerts of
20 the Ela Saoczer Club to your «nowladge?
21 A, Mo,
22 . So par: of your agresment to resign was
23 in order To Xeep the macter confriential?
24 A [ den'l krow i 7 w@enld have ipterpreted
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1 Q2. And where did the conversation take
2 place?
3 A Over the phone.
4 Q. And what, If anything, did he say toe
3 you?
6 A That the (ees had nob heen -- doing the
T veconciliation, fees had rot been paid and how did
] 1 want to take care of it.
9 Q. And did he Pring up the issue of the
10  overpayment of salary?
11 Al Ma.
12 Q. And how did you zaxe care of the payment
13 te the Hla Soccer Club?
14 A He cashed out some of my i02{k) and
L3 wrote a check to them subseguently. I believe it
16  was Lwe weaks afler e conversslion,
17 Q. Die anvene other than your
18 resignatien == at that reint in time did anycne
a else res.gn frem tae Ela Seccer Club?
20 EW Not that I'm awar2 of.
21 o Aml the prasilent a! 1The Luae wis
22
21
21 . And 3. Virgilis, just s> oo recerd i3

Navember 8, M1
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1 it that way, but it was just to resign,
2 Q. Do you racall when you gave your
3  resignation?
q A No, T <lon'z.
5 Q. Ckay. Was it in writing or was it just
4  verbal?
7 A. Verbal.
8 Q. To when did you give your resignation?
9 AL Don Caliender.
i0 Q. Was it at the library at that point in
H time?
12 A, Yes.
13 Q. And eventually the Ela Soccer Club
14 contacced you about §5,000 in overdus merbership
13 fees, correct?
14 AL Yes. Trat's cerrect.
17 Q. ko contacted you?
18 A. Hike Yudzik, who was the ireasurer, and
] it's B-v-n-z-i-k.
26 2. When did ke contact you?
21 A I'd say several weeis diter the
22 resignation,
23 Q. Did you have a cenversatien with him?
24 A Yes.
U S LEGAL SUPPORT
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i ¢lear, never made any comment to you regarding the
2 vast dae membership fees or the overpayment of
3 salagy?
4 A, Wot that I can recall. It was Don
5 Callender, that's whe 1 met with.
6 Q. And ther subsequently Mike Burdzik?
7 A, Correct. I did not meet with Mike. He
] just Lalked on Lhe chona.
9 Q. #hen 1s the Last time you spoke with
10 ML, Budzik?
11 A. Brebably two years age. T coached his
i2 daughter in swimming.
13 Q. Do you inow where he lives?
14 . Yos, Hawthore Yoeds.
15 Q. How, afrer your resigaration from the Ela
16 Soccer Club, what :s the next job you had?
17 AL T odiz work a little worh: for Kits
L€ Sucoer, shizh was pasically in Lhe sare buileing as
19 the Ela doccer. They had Kies, and then ElIa had an
2 cffize there, Sorzy. ke hamd gestures,
2% MX. HORAN: You can uze gesturayd, bat you
22 can't exclusively use cesLures. Yo'@ Aave Lo answWwar
23 10 owonds,
24 NRL LANZETD:  Thank youd.
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i MR. MCRAN: There is nu prohibition on
2 gestuzes.
3 8Y THT WITHESS:
1 LB And then I went te work for R-H
5 Insuzance. It's R-H Insurance.
6 87 HR, LANZITO:
7 Q. How lang did yeu work abt Kits?
a A Oh, it was temporary. Probably less
9 than four menths. I needed a more permanent
i0 position.
11 Q. How did you get the pesition at Kits?
12 A, Tony, Tony Dijen.
13 O What was your posiktion 4t Kits?
14 A. I'm laughing. Kits Sperts Camps. I did
13 three co five-year olds or under five-year old
14 tumbling ¢lass. I did little soccer camps. 1 dld
1 ¥ basically pricr-to-entering-scnocl-type sports
18 camps. T was an ‘*natruclor.
19 . Arnd yzu said -- what was Tony Dijen's
20  affilial.sn »ith tpe Xits program?
21 A, He's actually -- I don't know his ticle,
22 bur he's the like executive marager,
23 - And the executive mapsger, 1s fhat cver
4 tha Kits and the Ela Soccer Club zcpiined cr jast
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1 A. I believe it was in persen.
2 Q. Qkay. #Was he aware of the circumstances
3 of your resignaticn at the Ela Soccer Club?
1 A, I can't answer that. [ don't xnow.
5 Q. Dld he say during that conversation
6 whether he was aware of your circumstances at Ela
7  Soccer?
3 A, Ho. Ho.
] Q. Po you zecall what you were getting paid
10 at the Kits posilion?
il k. It was $8.50 an hour.
12 Q. And how much were you making per hour at
13 Ela?
14 AL I honestly don*t remember. $15% an hour.
15 MR, YORMI: Gon't speculate, He doesn't want
16  you to spzeulate.
17 BY THE WITHESS:
13 A, T den's new, T dan't re-ocber.
13 BY MR. LANZITQ:
20 Q. That's o gocu peont.  Anolmpr rule, amd
zl i didn's bring it up earlier.
27 It's okiy to say you don't racall., You
23  don*: semember. I just wani Lo inow what you

zemember Ior your testimeny so [ den‘t reed you L2

November 8, 2011
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1 Kits?
2 A Just Kits. That's his job, paid
3 pesition.
4 Q. And how many hours a week were you
5 werking for Kics at the time?
a8 A, Maybe -en.
7 Q. How long after yout resignaticn frem Ela
8 did Teny get you this position?
] A Oh, it was almost instankly.
10 Q- MNow, wazy Mr. Dijon, is bo a family
11 member o a clase friend of the family?
12 A. No.
13 Q. And haw did Mr. Dijon come to learn that
14 you were na longer with the Ela Soccer Club?
15 A. I wasn't cthere anymore. Physiczlly
16 wasn't theres anymore. Mis office was literally ten
17 feat away, and T cam: in and cleaned ovt ny atuff
13 and was no longer there.
13 G Okay. And ther ke contacted yeu or did
20 you contact him?
21 Al He said, "¥e'd love tc have you. Would
22 you lik%e %o ro somo classes [er J8?”
23 I said, "Sure.™
za 0. Was th:is 3 shone call?
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1 guess or speculate. Ckay?
2 AL CGkay. T do not remember.
3 Q. Qkay. That's perfectly fine, and you
4 said you worked with Kits for about Zour meonths?
5 A Yes, [ believe.
6 Q. And then you went to R-li Insurance?
T A. Correct.
] Q. What did you do at R-H Insurance?
9 A I was actually a gersonal lines
10 underwriter for R-H Insurance.
11 Q. 52 a progerty and casualty for perscnal
12  property?
13 A, Parsonal lines, homaowners, auto,
14 perscnal umbrella policy, things like that.
15 c. Undergtood.
14 So you weren’t & licersed underwriter.
17 You just assiuted in Che uoderwr:
18 A Heo, 1 did begomne lizensed. 1t was a
13 rauuiyement of the job.
20 Q. Ard whar year did yo bacome a ticensedd
il underwriter?
22 A, dithin six woalas of whan 1 was hizml
23  bkocause I bad to have it in order to chrair
24 comenissionsd. I can't give you an exact Jate. ['-
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L SOITY-
2 Q. And how long were you at R-H Insurance?
3 A. TWO years.
4 Q. Se¢ that would put you to what, 20404,
5 20052
& A. Ro, it's later than that.
7 Q. Let me ask you this way, maybe it can
g help you. 1n 20C7, you started the Hawthorn Woods
9  Aquatic Center.
10 A Yes.
11 o. What wasg your job immediately before
12 that?
13 A, R-H Insurance.
14 And bow long were you there?
13 Al Two years.
1s Q- So 2005 to 20C77
17 A, Yes.
18 o, And pr=cr te that., you said you spent
ia about feur rmenthys at the Xits Cluh?
20 A. Yes.
21 Q. Okay. So sometime in 2CCS is -- do you
22 recall if it was in 2005 oxr ZCUC4d when you were at
23 Kits?
24 A T do net raecall.
U S LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 A Xeicth Hunt.
2 o And how did you xnow Keith Kunt?
3 A, Aczually [ wasn't -- well, he's a
4 personal friend, but at the Lime he was <= wa met
5 at a dlnner dance 80...
[ Q. And did you have chilidren that played
7 together?
] A. Ho.
9 Q. And did you and your spanse meck with
10 him and his speuse at a dinner dance?
11 AL Yes.
12 Q. And is Keith, when you say ke's a
i3 personal friend, do you ge out with him to dinner,
14 family events, thingz like that?
15 A. Tes.
146 Q. How otter do you see Keith Hunt?
7 A Qree every tad menkns.
tr . I presuse LD was more when you ware at
- the Bawthorn d-cds Aruacic Conter, and e w45 1he
20 mayor, is that correct?
2 . No == [ oam sorty, yes. it was more
22 that pericd of Iimpe, yes.
23 L8 How, how long have you XnowWwn Keligh Funt
24 prior te 2002 and your appointnent?

Page 341
i C. Ckay. Dut you do recall for the two ard
2 a hall yedrs prior Lo heing at Kits, you were at
3 the Ela Soccer Club?
4 A. Tes.
3 Q. Oxay. So sometime between 2002 and
6 20057
7 A Yes.
i} Q. Okay. And why did ycu leave R-H
9 Tnsurance?
10 A- Ta take the jcb at the aguatic center.
11 Q. Hzw much were you making at R-H
12 Insurance at thae time?
12 A. Approximately 35,000 and there was
14 cerrisslons as well in addition to that.
15 Q. ©Okay. MHow, you were a trustee at tho
16 time as well?
17 A Tes.
18 0. What years were you 23 crustea’
19 Al 2002 to 20CT.
z0 Q. How, ware yzu agzeinted o a pnsi-ien as
Z1 2 czustee!?
22 A I was ascoinced and Shen elected.
23 2. Ckay. tho appoinzed you te a trustee in
24 e
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1 AL I did not -- well, really didn't know
2 him.
3 Q. ilow ls it rhat you came to be appsainted
q as a krustee?
5 A Well, we met at the dinner dance. You
[ xnow, ['m trying -- I don’t -- can wa take a braak
7 or I have to answer the questien becausge I den'c
8 remerber If [ was appeinted or elected first.
9 ¥R, MCRAM: That's fine, Tt's somothing se
g you can -- 5o you're saying you may not kave been
11 appeinted.  You're not sure.
12 THZ WITNESS: Correct.
13 HR. HORAHM: That's fire.
14 BY MR. LANZITO:
15 Q. But you're aure in 2002 was your start
14  data?
7 A. Yes.
H £ fiew leng had you known Keiih -- o you
12 sL1ll need Lo Lake g break? T oam serrv.
23 A. I'm fuss -- ng, [*m Jirs.
ES . How Long dfter you met Keich Hoant uid
22 yo ran Zor trusces ar did you assuma the posicion
231 af trus:ee?
s h'e Yoes,  Hoogrioagl by got to wnaw each
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H other for six months, semething along zhose lines.
2 Q. And did you run as pars of a slate?
3 AL Tes,
4 Q. Had you ever discussed the Ela Soccer
5 Club with Keith Hunt and what thke tezrms of your
& resignation were?
7 MR. MORAMN: “You mean pricr tc becoming a
8 Erustee or at any time?
9 ME. LANZITO: At any time,
1¢ 8Y THE WITNESS:
1z A, MHo.
12 BY ¥R. LRNZITO:
13 Q. And fust 20 we're c¢lear, that last
14 question is from the time you met Keith until the
15 prescens day?
16 A. He. le is aware cf it new., yes.
17 Q. Dia yeu tel: him?
tE AL Yes.
1¢ 2. And sh2n did you Firs: tell him?
2C KR, MCA Wait a minute. Was Keith your
2° lawyer at the cime thaz you had tkis discussicn
22 with nim?
23 THE WITNESS: Yes.
4 HE. MOEAN: Well, then I am going to objec: to
L. % LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 Soccer Club?
2 A o,
3 Gan 1 confer wich counsel?
4 HMR. MORAH: Sure.
5 (WHEREUPON, a recess was had.}
6 MR, LANZITC®: Read the last question back.
7 (WHEREUPQR, tke recorz was read
] as reguested.)
9 BY MR. LAKZITO:
M Q. And a= a trustee for the Village of
1 Eavthorn Yeocds, what were your duties?
i2 Al I was in charge -- well, trustee aed
12 then we had trustee liaisons to each of the
14 commitrees, and my pesition was packs and rec so I
13 was & trustee liaisen to the parks and rec
5] cemmiziee.
17 Q. How, while yon were a trustee, had you
18 told anyore within the mupicipalicy of Hawthemn
ps Woods about tha circorsisaces onder which you
20 resicnad 1z che Tla Jocser Club?
21 ¥R, RCRARM:  Just $0 wg ato cloar, anyons
22 snvzlvad in the goverrment? ot anyone Wwho lived
23 17 the municipalicy?
5 MR, LANZITO: Exacrly.

Navember 8, 2011
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1 tha gquestion arnd instruct you not to answer that.
2 BY MR. LANZITO:
3 Q. Are you refusing to answer based upon
4 the advice of counse)?
5 A Yes.
6 MR. LANZITO: Then ['Ll certily the guestion.
7 BY MR. LANZITO:
g Q. And maybe we can -- when did Keith Hunt
%  bocome your lawyer?
10 A After my terrination. Shortly after my
11 termiration trom the Village.
L2 Q. $o scmetime after end of February, early
13 Karch of 20107
14 A Correct.
15 Q. And when did he step bectnmlng yeur
18 lawyar -- when did he stop serving as your
17 attorney?
18 MR. WCFAI: wher I subscitated in for him,
19 wheneynr that =ay was.
20 MR. LEHZITO: That's fina.
21 2Y MR. LANZITC:
22 2. liew, prior $& the end oi February 2013,
23 ¥arch of 2010, had you ever told Keith Hunt the
23 circumstances under which you res_gned from the Ela
L5 LEGAL SUTPORT
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1 MR. MORAN: That's what [ thought you meant,
2 but I just wanted to make sure.
3 MR, LAKZiTO: That's fair.
L] BY TEE WITNESS:
5 Al Ho.
% BY ¥R. LANZITO:
7 Q. Hew, as part of the trustes, vere you
9 ever on the Einance committee?
g A. No,
in Q. And as part of the -- how many times did
11 you run for reelection Erom 2002 Lo 20077
12 A, I ran ence.
13 Q. ang who did you run With at that point
14 in cime?
19 B. The mayor was ieith Hunt. Trustae Greg
16 OCehrke, Jim Silverz., T'm missing -- na, it was the
17 fonr of us.
13 . Zid you ever divulge Lo treg Uehrxe or
193 Jim Silvers the cireums*anges uncer whith yas
20 cesigned?
21 A o,

. And you zan with chem ons time?

Yos.

vau wers alected?

PR YRCY
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1 A Yes.
2 Q. Hew long did Greg Gehrke or Jim Silvers
3  serve ¢on the hoard of trustees for Hawthorn Wowmis?
4 A I think I have o correct myself on thke
% election., 1 believe we ran twice.
6 0. Okay.
7 A. And how leng did I serve with them? Six
-1 years. So the ertire time I was on the teard.
9 Q. Were they con the board prior to you
10 joining the boarz of Lrustees?
11 A Keith was on the board as a trustee
12 prior to running for mayor.
i3 Q. Aad then Greg Gehrke and Jim Silvers for
14 the first time ran with you?
15 A Correct.
16 ¢. And did those two cerntlemen stay zn as
17 crustess arzer you Stepped down as trustee?
18 AL Yes.
19 Q. And kew lorg did they stay on?
20 . T Lhink .U was tacodyn Lhe nest
21 election.
22 b Okay. Cid taey s:tay on after Mayor
3 Mancing was elactad?
24 AL Ho.
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1 Q. And what was the title changed Lo?
2 A, I thought it was changed to directsr cf
3 Parks end Recreation at that time, but [ c¢zuld ce
4 wrong. Hy zitle was changed. 1 am scrry. 1
5 apolegize. My title was changed.
3 Q. And what was your title changed jo?
7 AL Director something of the aquatic
8 center. I can't remomber specilfically.
9 Q. And when was your title changed?
10 A Cctober of 200%.
1i Q. Okay. How [ just want to back up a
12 little bic.
13 When you stdarted, did yen apply tor an
14 open positlion as the director of recreation?
1% LE to.
16 0. Okay. There was 36 application processa?
17 A ot that [ was aware of.
18 2 Dkay, Lid yoo ever (il out =n
] applizatizn in 2027 prior o kecening the E
20 recter of :gureation?
21 AL to.
22 o Hew did you learrm absut ths zosicion?
21 A I was anprosgches -- weii, T owas
21 approached.

Page 42
1 Q. So they didn't run fer reelectlon?
2 A, Cerrece,
3 Q. And Mayer Hunt didn*t run for
q reelaction?
5 n. Correst.
G Q. Do you knew why?
7 A, Family reasors.
8 Q. What about ¥r, Gehrke or Mr., Silvers?
9 A. I don't kncw their reasons for neot
10 running.
11 Q. So is it safe to say the election in
1z 2009 was an unoppesed electien?
12 A. Yes.
14 Q. There were no debates, anything like
15 that, correct?
16 A Ho.
7 Q. Arg as yvou sa.d, Lu 2007, you toox a
L&  positien as the Parks and lecreation direcier?
1% Al I celieve che tizle at the time was
2 ditentar of racreation,
2L a. And was the title chanced at some point
22 in time?
23 Al T was aZter the Maver Mancino and
44 Admiristracor Wewton came cn.
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1 Q. By who?
2 Al By Keith Hun:.
3 Q. When were you appreached by Keith Aunt?
5 A. February -- well, it was pafore
5  Febrna:y. Tt had Lo be Januacy.
6 Q. Qf 2C077?
T A. Correck.
B Q. And what, if anything, did Keith Euat
9 say to you in January of 2007 regarding this
16 position?
11 A, As you're aware, we were cemstructing
12 the aquatic center. We had a June time tzame in
13 terms of opening the pool, and his words, [ bealieve
14 werze, [ don't baelieve there is anybody more
15 qualified than yo1 Lo run Lhe aquatic venter. We
ig woule like you to consider the position, and that
17 43s it.
13 . Was ~his at o board meeting cr was
12 tais --
20 A Casual converzakizn,
21 Q. Do yeuw recall where the ceornversatien
i2 to0k place?
22 A Hz, I den'cr.
21 B Chay,  And e 3aid there & LALGIY. ==5e
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1 A Can you just --
2 G, Can you deseribe che layout of ic?
3 Al Are you looking for acreage or are you
94 leeking for --
5 Q. Humber of pools, amenities to the peels,
6 things of that nature?
7 A, There was & diving wall, a 25-yard lap
84 pool, a slide pool, and a children's waiting area,
9 play area.
10 Q. Kow, prior te == you sald it was in
11 constructicn when Keich conctacted you, right?
i A Yes.
i3 Q. And prier to tha:, what involvement, if
1a any, did yeu have with the aquatic center?
15 A Quite a biz,
1€ Q. And was that as a truatee?
17 A tes.
18 Q. And what irvelvesenl d.o you have?
13 A F:em the very beginning when it became
20  apparent tlhat Lthere wou.d de tunding available for
z1 aquatics -- well, actually prior to even funding
22 it, there was a == [ had beceme aware pricr to us
23 even liviny at Yawthorn Hooids, i survey had come
24 out that one of the amenizies that the village
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1 cthe court reportecr.
2 A K-r-i-s-c-h-k-a,
2. How maony reatings did you have wizh Jim
4 rischke?
5 A, There was more people in sddition to Jim
f Krischke. Mancy Calne, who was che finance
T directer.
] Q. Hancy King?
) Al I1z's Calne, C-a-i-n-e,
10 2. And ahe was the finance director for
1 where?
12 A, The Village. W& also el with a peol
13 contracter out of Wiscensin, and I cannot recall
14 the name. I beliova Donna Lobaite was in some of
15 the meetings. I think Steve Riess might have been
L6 in ore. de had numerous meetings. lie may roc have
17 reer in all of tnem, aond he [s & Liustee in the
15 ¥illage.
19 c. Okay., And you said Uorna Lebaits.  Uhen
23 was Conna Lobaite nired by Fawrharn decds, da oyou
zl wagu?
22 . iohie rooiness She adas Loers prior o
23 we.
24 Q. To wsu XNz if she was hized by Keith?
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1 qualified, correct more or less?
z A. Yes. Yes.
3 Q. And prier te being appointed or being
4 hired on as the director of recreation, how many
5 other positlons did you hold whare you were
[ director of recreation?
7 AL Hone.
-3 Q. ‘Were you ever -- did you ever obtzin a
] certified pool operator's license?
10 A, Yes.
11 Q. And when did you cbtain thac?
12 A, 2009,
13 Q. Okay. So you oparated the pocl for two
14 seasons before being cercified a pool cperator?
i5 A Correct.
16 Q. Pzice ta 2CC7, hew many poels had you
17 operated or maraged?
18 A. tene.
] 2. Fricr te 2337, how many pool facilities
20 did you wotk on wiece you wanaged thke chemicals or
21 the mechanicals of the pool?
22 A Hene.
23 2. And how biq of a facility was the
24 Mawthorn Woods Aquatic Center?
U N LEGAL SUPPMIRT
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1 wanted was an aquatic center and walking paths.
2  That was through eur iavelvement in running for the
3  village.
4 Sc knowing that and also the fact that
%  Community Park had the walking paths that we
[ desired, one of the things that we were striving
7 faor is other amenities to the Village, and since
8 the survey back in -- it was in the late 1990s and
9 a pocl wag one of the things.
10 80 when furding became available,
1l clearly it was top en the community'z lisc at that
12 time. So Keith then consulted sach of the
12 trustees: relative ccnsensus was that we would like
14 to have an aguatic center so...
L5 Q. And whal specific role did you play in
15 ckhe planning of that aquatic center?
17 9 Meerings with the former Yillage
18  administrator Jim Hrischze.
14 M. NoRAM:  dWas he the Village afminiatrator
20 ar the Lime or was he 4 logmerl adninistrater?
21 THE WITNESS: [ am scrry. 7That's correco. iie
22 WAy Lho curzent Yillage adminisivater ot the time.
23 BY MR. LANZITO:
3 2. Caft you glease spell his last name for
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1 A tlo, I do noc.
2 Q. Ard otker than those individaals, did
3 you meet with anysne eise regarding the deveicpmen:
q of 1he pooi?
5 A. Yes. There was all kinds of pecple.
6  Maneini Ixeavating. There was Jett Pathmanr, whe
7 also nhappened to be a client of mire at R-H
8  Insucance; Justin Pathmann, his son; Schaefges
a9 Brothers with Steve Karecki. You're going to ask
10 me to spell that, right? K-a-r-e-ec-k-i, and he ls
11 with Schaeiges Ercthers,
12 I met with nurerous otner people in
13 other cerrunities azout running aquatic cencers. I
14 dor"t know their names off the top of my hecad.
15 Basically we were doing leg work in terms of
16  getcing the pool up and :unning iz time for a
17  June lst opening.
15 [+ ¥Yeu said you were neeting with other
13 peeple scgarding aperating an o wquarie eenter?
Z0 A Uk-hun.
21 M. MQRAM: Yes. You have to say a word, yes-
22 THESS!:
3 B, Yes.
21
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1 AL Yes.
2 Q. Oxay. And who told you that they had
3 been looking for am aquatic center manajer and/or
4 directer of operations?
5 A, Ho ore Lold me. IL's intaitive.
6 Q. 0id you see any minutes from trustee
7 meekings or Parks and Recreation meetings whoere
g cthat waa specifically outlined?
9 AL Ho.
10 Q. erior to you becoming the directar of
L1l racreation, when was the last cime Hawtharn WHoods
12 had a director of recreation?
13 A [ was aware of a gentleman who ran our
14 wWoodchucks pregraz in the '90s. That was my only
-1 recollectizn of sclnebn;:ly baing in that positian,
1 Tre reasen I kncw that is T believe he was ore aof
14 oy r2ighzoers.
13 2. Just se the record is clear, pricr te
13 Janaary of 2807, jyou had rever seen any jai gesting
20 fur o position of dizector af resreanisn or ta run
2l th2 aguatic center?

And as you it here, you'ie nnt avare of

e

w Jeb pesting ceing discussad in any trustee

Page 50
1 DY MR. LAKZITO:
2 Q. Aculd that include other pool operators,
3 managers?
4 Al Yes.
5 Q. As a truatee, did you ever put out to
8 bid the pesizion of director of recreation te
7 operating of the Hawthorn Woods Aquatic Center?
8 Al Not me perscnally. ne.
9 Q. Qkay. And was that ever discussed?
10 A. fot wich me.
11 Q. So the first time you became aware that
z the Viliage of Hawthorn Woods was looking for
12 somecne Lo manage the aquatic center and be the
14 director of recreazicn in JSancary of 2007 when
1% Keith Huni appreached you?
16 A I'm not stupid. Ssrebody had to run the
17 noal ma priar Lo January, yes, wo woro sware “hat
18 wa were celng to hire ssmebody foar thaz position.
14 2. Ok, no, that's not wha:t I'm saying.
20 Sarry.
21 Prier to January of 2007, hkad you heard
22 nf the Village of Haw-lhern Woords seeking the
23 ergleyment of scmecne o run the Hawthorn Woods
24 Aguatic Center?
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1 meetlng or Parks and Recreation meeting?
2 Al Correct.
3 2. Did Keith Hunt, when he said you're the
4 mest qualified individual he ceould think of, did he
5 indicate whether or not he had interviewed or
] spoken with anyene elsae?
7 A. Ho.
[:] Q. How, did you actually help with the
L) physical design of the pocl?
10 . Yes.
1l Q. How 567
12 A Selecting tne layout. We had numerecs
12 possibillities in front of w3, what worked, what
14 didn't work. The other thing at thac poirt In tire
15 is we did net know the locstion of the pegl, whara
13 it was going $o actuaily physically ke censtructed.
37T 59 our layout that we likes the Cest, oace we Louncd
18 aut what land it was coing te sit on and hew it was
1% going 1o have te situate o0 t2at land and ihag
20 parcel would not §iL #0 Wwo had fo change Thirgs
21 arernz a bro. Sz It was basically a work in
22 ProyLess.
27 z. Mow, vwas one of the purposes zf She zeol
2 ta 22 4 peol where you cen hold sanciionel swimming
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compezitions? t Q. Okay. And did you speak with the design
A Yes. 2 tegam akout sgacifically having a poel that would be
Q. And do you urderstand what I mean by 3 capable of hosting sanctioned swimning events?
sanctioned swim compeLitions? 1 A. Mz specifically, na.
A Yes. 9 Q. During the design and then tre
Q. Az you sit here teday, were you aware & construction, was there anything prohibiting the
whether or not the Hawthorn Woods Aquatic Center ? “illage of Hawthern Wopds from making the peol
car hold sancticned competitions? 8 deeper so that it could be used fer sanctioncd
n. No -- well, I'm not sure about that. I 9 swimming eventa?
know the shallow end is toc shallow for divirg. 1 10 n. I'm not sure I understand Lhe question.

believe now current standards sre that the deep 11 Q. Was there any problems wich the soil or

end, if you will, is also teo shallow with starting 1z the site which prohibited the excavator from going

blocks. 13 deeper to make the pool capable of being used for

Q. And when did those regulatiens or 14 sancbioned eveats?

guidelines come lnte eifect as to the decth of the 15 AL I don't believe that was the reason tcr

powl? 16 lt, bus there were problems with the gsil, yes,

A. I dor't krew that. 1t that is correct.

Q. Qkay. Do you knew - you. yourself, 13 fo Okay. Were there any craer proalems

were formarly 4 corpet_t_ve sWimmer, righz? 19  with the pecl beinc toe shirt fsr sancticned

A. Swhirer. 20 events?

. And do you kaow if anyone leooked inte 21 .9 Ho.

«hat the requirements were o have a sarglionec 22 2. Qkhay. 50 as vou sit here teday, it's

sael fer competitive purposes duzing its design? 23 vour understanding that it's long enough 1o hbe used

24 far sanctioned events, ‘us: not deep erough?

EX The design eam. I dor't know.
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R Corract. 1 2. Did he also hit his head?
. And what about che diving? Yeu had high 2 A, Yes,
dives irsctalled there? 3 [+B And was he bleeding?
AL That's correct. L] A, Yos.
5 Q. Are there currently high dives installed 5 Q. Did it cause any damage to Lke pool?
¢ there? 6 A Ho. [It's an urban legerd.
7 A T don’'t know, I have not been there. 7 Q. But he was bleeding?
Q. Hhen is the last time you were at the E:| A, Yes,
Hawthorn Woods Aquatic Centecr? 9 Q. Ard you saw thae?
Al The day [ was terminated. 10 L Yes, 1 did.
o, Se in March, end of March 2010, lare 11 o And was that the night hefore the pool
Tebruary? 12 was to offticially epen?
A, Last time I have been there. 13 A, Yes.
Q. The first day that the pool was opered, 14 Q. Was that lixe a private openlng party?
did Kaith Hunt use Lhe high dive? 1% L i Was -- no, it wasp‘lL a private
A, Yes. L6 opeaing. The lifeguards were there. ¥e were
[»3 Aml whaz, 1b anythirg, happene:d when ne 17 putting tinal touches on cpen:ng the gosl.
used the high diva? 18 Q. Oray. Lo yau know what injuries Xeich
A He injuzed himseli. 17 sustained as a result of hitting nis head and his
Q. Anrl how did he injore himseif? Z0 hangds?
LN e dove out tiz far and hicz nis hands 2n 21 Al I knew he2 sastalined inluries o both of
Lhe slopes embanknent ip the diving wall. az 5t3 aml a4 ol ke his head,
2. HeW you dald he hiz his hands? 23 . And you were then the dizecter of parks
AL Yes. 24 and racraatisn?
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1 A, Yes.
2 Q. And what, if anything, did you de Lo
3 investigate whether or not the diving level Jas
4 appropriaze?
5 A. Well, we contacted Echaefges Brothers,
6 and they verified thac the depth was fine for the
7 diving boards and Lhey buiit gkther pools with the
8 same diving wall, same diving boards, and there's
9 rever been a preoblem.
1ad Q. Was Keith ever a competitive diver?
11 A. He says he waa.
12 Q. Fair enough.
13 Mew, in January of 2007, when you were
14 discussging the pasition, did the issue af salacy
15 come up?
1a Al In January?
17 G. oL 2007, yesa.
16 A. Ho.
14 Q. Wren is the first time you found out
20 what yeur salary was going te be?
21 AL Pricr to -- oh, goodness, just prior ta
2z Accepling the pesition, which would have been in
232 SJanuary.
24 2. %0 you were offered thke positizn in
UL 8. LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 re¢reational programs as well as the aqualkic centerx
2 programs. 3o it meant not only lifeguard staff but
3 recreational szaff.
4 Q. Now, did you take any coursewosrk on the
5  management. of pools prier to opering the Hawthern
6 Woods Aquatic Center at the first day?
7 A No.
] Q. tow, going back to the incident wicth --
9 A, Oh, I am sorry. [ had to be a certified
10 lifequard, and I toek a CPR class. So 1 apologize.
11 Q. S0 other than taking your certified
12 liteguard course and your CPR course, did you take
13 anything else related to poel management?
14 AL Ho.
15 Q. Mow, when Xeith had injured himself, you
16 said you were opening the rnight before sr you were
7 gelling things ready the night befora?
14 A s,
14 Q. Qray. Did you repsre the injuary o
Z0 Tilirois Department @[ Health?
Z1 A. We. M zuet it in our accident loghoaok.
22 Elise Yagner was cha managac of the peel thar day,
23 ard she was the one wno pur it in “he logbeok.
4 2. Ckay. 3Jid yon £ill out any injury or

Fage SE
1 January and accepted in January?
2 A, Yeah.
3 Q. And yon accepted withoeut krowing what
L] the salary was?
H A Me. 1 mean, Lt wasn't cne conversation
[ cthen another. It was an ongeing conversation.
7 Q. Ard what salary did you agree to take?
[:3 A. 50, CC0.
9 Q. Was there any negoriation chere or
10 that's Keith said Lhe olfer was Lake it or leave
11 ic?
12 A Basically that was all he could offer.
13 Q. What were your respensibilitiea for the
14 $50,0002
15 A To plan, promeote, operate, and starg
16 recreational programming ail year-round programming
17 and run the aquat:ic center.
18 [o tow, frem Janwary ef 2007 unzil you
19 copened the pasl, what did yeu do in erdez to
20 prepare yourselfl for the dulies and
21 respensibilities that you were going to have?
22 . I was hirved or I was accepted zn the
23  position February ls:. I ther becan przgzamming,
24 prometing, hiring whoever 4 gar to run the
L. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 accident report?
2 A, Elise did.
3 Q. Do yox know LE Mr. Hunt had been
4 drinking prior te diving into the peol?
5 AL [ do not mow Lhat.
-1 Q. S0 is it safe to say this was a
7 snbstancial ralse from what you were oreviously
0§ making wlth the Insurance cempany?
9 A It was a raise, yes.
10 2. So you were raking $35,000 before the
il aguatic fenter and $52,300 after?
12 L Aicth commissions, I was probably close
13 ta 40,000, so yes.
14 C- Now you had %o resign as a trustea,
15 corcece?
14 AL Yes, T did.
17 Q. Did you krow any ol the delandants prior
] L& beceming a trosteas?
T4 A The cefendants, that's all the Yillage
290 peopln?
21 2. Larresc,
22 AL s
23 =N Tou did, yas?
24 A Yes.
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Q. Qkay. And did you krow specifically -- 1 A Ko.
2 who did you specifically know and in what capacity? 2 Q. Heil Meegan?
a MR, MORAN: This is before becoming a trustee? 3 A RE
4 MR. LAMZITO: TYes. 4 Q. David Ansani?
5 BY THE MWITHESS: 9 A, Me.
L) A, Oh, before becoming a trustee. I am ] Q. Helly Corrigan?
7 sorry. I did not understand the fguestign befare 7 AL Ho.
8 beceming -- can you just reghrase Lg? 8 Q. Now, whlle you were a trustee, did you
9 BY MR. LAWZITO: a9 knew who Joseph Mancine was when you were a
1] Q. Can you just briefly describe how you 10 Trustee?
knew the :individual defendants before ycu became a 11 A. At tre end of my -- no. HNe. When I was
trustee in Hawthorn Woods? 12  a trustee, no, I did net.
A €an you go through each oI them because 13 Q. when did you firat meet or xnow of or
it would make it easier. [ dor’'t want to. 4 kear of Joe Mancino?
Q. We'll do one by ore and I'll just read 15 A. He started coming o boazd meerings.
it off. 16 . So some sime --
Joe Manciro, Zid you know him bofore he 17 A. T hawve no idea. Tt was prabahly 4 year
becare & Lrustee? 13 grior =o my termination.
A. tlo. 13 HR. HORAHN:  So azter yeu resijgned as krustee
Q. Can Newtaen? 20 buz while you were working in your peosition?
AL Ha. 21 THE WITHESS: CTorrecct.
2 Danna Leobaito? 22 8Y MR. LARZITO:
A, 3sfore, no. i3 2. Sz when you say a year prior, are you
0. Krisrin Razenas? 24 Like Feuruaary of 20092
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AL Maybe more than that. HMaybe like a year 1 in your lawn?
2 and a half, twec years because he was elecred. It 2 A T did nsl know her when I pul Lie sign
3 was a year prior to hls electicn that he started 3 in my yacd.
4 coming to meetings. 4 Q. Did you speak with her betore you put
5 Q. What about Pam Newton? 5 the siyn in your yard?
8 A, Het her at a function or two but didn't, ] A. Hope.
T you know, know her. 7 Q. Do you «now how the sign got in your
8 Q. Did you know if a2he held any elected 3 yard?
9 positions prior to -- ] Al [ was asked by Keith HunL tc puk it ia
10 Al Yes, 10 my yard.
Q. And what position did she held? 11 [+ Were you a trustee at that peint in
12 A L.ake CounLy Beard Rep, I think. 12 cime?
13 Q. Lake County Commissienez? 13 A, T do net recail.
14 LB I den't know if that's the title. She 14 Q. Mow, ptior ko that you said you hadl not
1% wag ¢n kthe Lake County Boaid. L5 trown Fam Yewten?
téa [+ Did you ever make a campaign 16 L Corcect.
17 apatribution Lo her carpaigr? 17 [+ When iz the first time you knew Fox
10 AL Ho, [ did rnot. 13 dlewzon or spoke with Fam Kewten?
11 Q. Did you ever put a lawa siga for her in 1% H Probably Lbe first iy sie gcame +- was
0 yonur frant laur? 20 alred and came into the cffice.
Al tes. 21 (A So prisr t3s wsuld that b=, Hay or June
2 3. T you RIOW Whabl Yeas you did? 22 of 20937 fhat's the first fime you ever actually
3 A, Mo idea, 3 et or secke with Eam Hawton?
21 o Cid you know Pam Lefore you put a siyn 24 AL I ooet hor one othier Line ol st Bicg.

S EEGAL SUPIMORT
(502) 2304052

LS LEGAL SUPPORT
(312 236-8352




Case: 1:10-cv-05707 Document #: 91-1 Filed: 08/17/12 Page 18 of 52 PagelD #:390

Kimberly Lynch

Kimberly Lynch

November 8, 2011
Page 63
1 1 do knew I physically met her one other time.
2 Whare it was, 1 don'L recall.
3 G. Wnat do you recall about meeting her
4 that first time?
5 A Just hi, how are you kirnd of thing, just
& nice to mee: yeu. ['ve heard you, you know, en the
7 Laka County Board, that's abour it.
8 Q. Okay. It wasn't contentious. The
9  conversation was pleasani, right?
10 A. It was in a casual setting, 5o yes,
11 that’s correce.
iz Q. And prior to May or Junc of 2009, had
13 you ever made any statemencts about Pam Hewton?
14 A Yes -- well, no. HNo.
15 G. Now, next was Donna lLobaite. When is
16 the first time you mer Donna?
17 A, Hherr [ brcame a trustce.
18 . Somewhere arcund 20027
id A Tea,
20 Q. Erd what waz her goaition at the
21 municipality?
22 A Azsistant Villane administracor.
23 Q. And that was under Jim Koischke?
24 AL Yars .
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1 Q. and when was this?
2 A Qh, numerouns times. There was some
3 issues abeut handing out permits wo pecple without
4 them paying far iv that we became awaze of, and
5 then just nothing specific but that was cne key
[ issua thar pecple were not paying for permits that
7  they should be paying for.
& Q- And whko handled the resolution of that
5 matter?
10 A I am nct aware of wio handied that.
il Q. Who was in the building department
12 during this time period?
i3 A Sandy Hanson. I den't recall who else.
14 T know Sandy was for suce.
15 <. And the building departmant would he
16 responsible fer issuing permits?
17 AL Cozrect.
18 o, S0 it's not necessarily Lhat Uonna Was
12 handing onl peimitg, L a5 someons i he Vil lage
20 3taff that was handing a4l permits witkoutl waying,
21 cozrece
2z &
23 <
24 cormily?

November 8, 2011
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1 Q. And I thick befere yeu said you didn't
2 ¥now who she was hiced by?
3 A. Correct. I actually met with Russell
4 Benford, He was the Village adminiszrazor at the
s time so it wasn't Jim Krischke. It was Russell
6 Benford.
? Q. And since she was che assistarnt Village
a administrator, did you work with rer from time co
3 Eime?
10 A. Yes.
| 3 Q. Ard prior to ¥ay or June of 2009, wha:
12 was your impression of her?
13 A- Nice, ceénstientious persen.
14 Q. Had you ever voiced any concerns or
%S cemplaints te Conna about Cenna's job perfiormance?
1 A To Jopna?
17 Q. To Donrna.
13 A Heo.
13 Q. AFoany time did oyou ever voloe any
20 concerns about Dorra's enpleoyment with the Village
21 of Hawchorrn Woods to anysn2?
22 Al Yes.
23 2. #ith whem?
29 AL Koith.
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1 A I d=n't know their names specifically,
2 no.,
3 e Co you know how many permits were issved
q without paymenc?
5 AL [ believe there was two that Maycr Hunt
6 was made aware of at the time.
7 Q. And do you krow (f they were friends of
] Keith funt?
o A. I do not kngw that.
10 Q. D3 you kncw now Coe matter was resolved?
11 hiY He, I de not.
12 Q. Ro you know when this oceucred?
13 A. Probably -- I think it was zpproxinacely
14 2997 because I do believe that Mayor Eunt actualily
13 waz planning on letting Hs. Lebaite go at that
18 time,
17 G. frad wiveienaly he diagn®L?
18 A o,
1y 2 Qkav.  Uther than that one instances, did
0 yon avar any goneorn or oriticize Hs. Lebaito
21 o anyine sisa?
22 h¥ Tanige Kaurmann, Cheiol
23 . empleynes within sha Yiliage.
23 2. Wiz Donne presest for these hedtlags?
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1 A. Koo 1 Q. Je yol know if Hs. Kaufmann owed Keich
2 [+ 8 Did yeu ever tell Ms. Lobaite to her 2 Hunt lagal fees at Lhe Lime she was hired at
2 face cr criticize her in any way prior to your 3 Hawthorn Woods?
4 termination? 4 I No, I don't know that.
A, Ho. 5 Q. Do you know urder what circumstances
MR, HORAN: To her face. 6 HMs. Kaufmann left tke Village of Hawthorn Woods?
3Y MR. LANZITO: 7 A. Ho.
Q. In peracn Corversation. L} Q. Do you know where Ms. Kaufmann ls
MR. MORAN: Rigkt. 9 working naw?
BY THE WITNESS: 10 A, Yes, I do. I believe she's in the
A. No. 11 ¥illage of Lake Zurich.
BY MR. LANZITO: 12 Q. And do you know who she is working for?
Q. ¥ew, let's taik about Ms., Kaufmarn., 0o 13 A. He, I don"t. Only rumor and speculacion
you knecw how she got her job act the Village of 14 sao T'm no:t going o -~
Hawthorn Woods? 13 Q. Wha: did you hear abeut where she i
A He, I do not. 1a working?
Q. Der yonr oW who bired Ms. Kaulmana? 17 A i heard it was for the now fire o
A I believe it was thrzugh a contact with 18 Q. ho is the new fire chief?
Heirthk Hunt. 19 n, T dou't know, 1 7onestily den't know his
Q. Lo you knaw if Keita Huat was her z20 neme. I know the fsrrer cne., 1 don't ‘tnow the
attornay? 21 currert cne.
AL T e believe he wax her atbozney. T 2z o, Dz you know if the now fire chief is »
Zen't know if he was the primary atcorney, buc I bc 23 [riend ef Xeirh Huac?
bel_eve ne represented her. 24 AL Hes,
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Q. dew yeu said Christine Lubrich? 1 A, Thar she falsified her employment
AL Lubrich, yes. 2 appiication.
Q. L-u-b-r-i-£-h? 3 ¢. And how did she falsify it frem what you
A, Correct. 1 remembes 7
Q. And whom was she hired? 5 A Some rLype of criminal -- she didn't put
A. [ don*t know. é some kind of criminal charge on her apolication.
Q. Do you know how long -- ¢t what was the 7 Q. Did you ever talk te her about her
pesition she held at Hawthorn Waeds? 8 application --
h She: was in the building department. 9 A Ha.
Q. Do you know which years sho was in che L0 Q. -- and alleged criminal activity?
buileing department? 11 A. No.
A, Ho. 12 Q. $o otner than speaking with Ms. Kauimann
Q. De ycu know when is the last time she 13 and Ms. Lubrich, did you discuss witk anyone else
was erzloywtil vy tne Village of Hawthorn Hocds? 14 prior Lo your termination any of your corplainks
A It was prior zo my furlough so T want oo i3 about M3, Lobalto?
say lovember of 2009, 1 believe. That's 14 A Within the village?
approximaze. 17 Q. With anyeone.
Q. Do you <now why she 18 nz lzngec La A Yes.
enpleyel by the Village or Hawthorn Wolds? 10 o whz?
A, Hot specilically., nz, I dan'c. 20 AL Wy friends, my husband, my family. It
2. Do you krow i it had aayihing e do 21 was a Lrustratiay time.
with hez expleyment apzlicalion? 22 . Pricr o your terminazier, just so tha
A, I heard, ves, I di ar about that. 23 rocord i3 cleasr, you didn't discuss anv of your --
hB ARE whal glag pen heac? 24 voige any of your complairts direckly o
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1 lireguard?
2 A. Yes.
k| Q. And did you speak with anyone else
4 regarding Mr., MGrgan*s son?
5 A, Yes, Mg. RHewton after my conversation
& wikh him.
7 Q. When was this conversation?
8 Al Iz was in the summer of 2009.
] Q. And what, if anythking, did you rell
10  Donna Lobaito about him?
11 Al I told her what cccurred at the aquatic
12 center, 1 asked her advice on how to handle the
13  gituatien since it was an HR situation. She
-4 said -- and Pam was out of town, Ws. Rewton was
13 out of tewn so Conna really didn't give me much
16 acvice in terms of how to handle it. || then -- _
17 zhzked.
13 Q. Les me back you up. Khat was tne
17 circumszance?
20 A fle was caught stealing at the aquatic
21 uenLar.
22 2. What was ne scealing?
23 AL Gacorade cut Of wlat was not gur -- it
24 was out =f the Culver's concession area, which s
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1 do. There was na direction given. So I said I was
2 qoing te be letting him go, and then I did let him
3 g» after that; and then I advised Pam when she
q returned that we had lec him go and for the reasons
5 that were given.
B Q. Okay. And what, if anything, did Pam
7 say?
k] A. She said Jet”s noc tall deil, sShe said,
9 “How would you handle thiz with any other
10 employee?”
il I said, "I would just fice them."
12 *You wguldn't need eo call the parents?®
13 1 said, “ho."
14 She said, "Well, ler's not tell ¥eal
13 taen."
15 0. S50 she said handle iL kcwever you would
17 handle it wich ancther erployee?
H AL Uh-huh.
19 HR. MSEAN: I that a1 yes?
z oY k. LARZITD:
21 2. I3 Lhat ua yas?
22 AL tas, Sorcy.
23 o And Pam didn's zell you -~ Pam and Dznna
24 sever teld you den':z fice him?

Page 13
1 Hs. Lobaite?
2 LN Ko.
3 Q. And what about with respect to Joe
4 Marcine prigr to yowur termination, had yon
5 digseussed With him any of the complaints about his
% Jeb performance or administration?
7 A No.
8 Q. And what about with Ms. Pamela Hewtcn,
9  did you discuss with her any of your cemplaints
10 with her job performance prior ts your termipation?
11 A Her jok perfcrmance, no.
12 0. Did you discuss with her any complaints
13 a2bout her political affiliacion prior to your job
14 termination?
15 B Ho.
1é G- Other than Donna Lebaito when you were
17 sgeaking with Hs. Kaufmann ard ds. Lubrich, did you
18 discuss any of the other named defendants ['ve
19 npreviously mentioned?
20 A Well, Mr. ¥ocrgan sgeciflically.
21 . And whcn did yoa speak with?
22 Denna and it was actually not &béui --
23 it was Mr. Morgan's son.
249 2. Hr., Hergan's son was amployed as a
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1 noet euz stock or whatever.
2 Q. They ledase the --
3 A Yeah.
4 Q. Did you ever tell anyone that he had
5 taken a fountain drink?
] A, A fountain drink, no, it was Gatorade.
7 Q. Had your lifequards in the past ever
§ grabbed a fountain drink £rom Culver's in the past?
o W With Culver's consent.
10 0. Okay. And had ycu ever seen
11 Mz. Morgan's son grab a fountain drink from
12 Culver's with consent in the past, prior to this
i3 ircident?
14 A See him, na, I naver saw him do it.
15 [+ 34T you Saw --
1h Al The lifequards would ¢o and ask for
17 fountain drinks,
LB 0. And that was prioar &z thiz ingiden:?
14 A Yes.
29 Q. %o when ysu t2ld M3, Lobaizo that you
21 saw Mr, Morgan's scn st2al g Gatorads, what, tf
2z arything, Wis her reaponze?
23 A T don't rezall the exact conversaticn,
24 _huL therr was drally no def nrlive or shat 1 shaa0d
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1 5. Ho. 1 A. Erogably 2009 and 2009.
2 Q. They said you're the director, do what 2 Q. Lo you recall in 2009 when you had these
3 you reed ro do? 3 cenversations?
4 A, Uh-huhb. 4 A Hao.
5 MR. MQRAN: Is that a yes? 5 0. And did you tell Mr. Horgan te his face?
(3] BY MR. LANZITO: [ A No.
7 Q. Yes? 7 Q. Who did you tell?
8 A, Yes. Sorrcy. 8 AL Terry Ditck,
9 Q. How, other than that conversation about ] Q. Terzy Diteh s on the packs and
0 Hr. Horgan's kid, rad you criticized Mr. Morgan in 10 recreation committes?
any other way, shape, or form prict te your 11 A, He was cn the parks and rec committee,
termination? 12  corzeck.
A, Yes. 13 Q. Dicch, D-i-t-c-h?
Q. Haw so? 14 A. I think there was an $ in it, yeak, 1
A. I felt since I had previously heen the 15 think it was gseme:zhing like that, yeah.
crustee llaison foz the pazks and rec committes, T 16 Q. Anycne else?
felt like he was not doing whal was nectdsd, Lhar e 17 A, Dan Replinger, Dar Fortmon, Poul Stuart,
porsibly wapted to he on arother committes, things 14 paople that were on the parks and rec committes.
along those lines, 13 Q. Do you kraw if .1 w43 ~hile the pool was
Q. Ard wher was thiz cenversation? 20 sz1ll cperating when ysu were making these
Al There ware nurerous cnes generally afrer 21 criticisms?
parks ang rec oorRitteo meetings with parks and rec 22 Al Yes.
cocrmiccee rerkers. 23 2. $c it was the summertime?
Q. o your rwall which year? 29 AL ®ell, we had pmon~hly meetings so it was
U, &% LEGAL SUPPIAT U, 5 LEGAL SUPPORT
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aller ona ot these meetings se it could have been 1 meelings aiways ran long.
in the spring and/or sumrmer. 2 Q. Mew, did you ever speak to the public
Q. Of 20097 3 about your telief that Steve Riess smelled Like
A Yes. 4 alzchel during open session mectings?
Q. Just so we are c¢lear, did you make any 9 A. Yes.
other critlcisms of any of Lhe named defendancs 3 Q. And to whom did you speak?
that you car recall? i Ay My family and friends.
A. Steve Riess, yes. 8 Q. Did you ever call Lhem Lo the carpet
Q. When was that? 9 durirg che board reeting and say, lley, Steve, why
A, When I was a trustee or are you asking 10 do you smell like booze?
when [ was or any eriticism at all? 11 A, Ho.
Q. Any time, ma’am. 12 Q. Lid you ever do it in closed session?
L Yes. Steve had a cerndency to show up at 13 A 1 did net. Ho.
tae meetings intoxicated at bimes or at igasg 14 Q. How, just a question abeut {lell Morgan.
smelling of liguer. ! voiced my opinicns to the i3 ile was a crustee?
atterney At the time pext to Se, I can't remember 16 A Tes.
his name, and he would alsz farct during meecings, 17 Q. Was ke elesfied or was ne sppoinTed?
which 15 a litile Siscsnierting. hnnd he came 18 Al Apps itand.
ill-prepared for meetinia ai rimes. i) . By whem was he appointed?
I exgiessed that again ¢ Helth and Jim A0 A, Keita,
Silvers, wha =at iree listely 1o ny latt, and we 2% o Aeith Hunt?
ware all aswned to prapare for maetings wivh our 22 a Yas
bl gacket and 3teve had 3 tendency to just 23 Q. And dooyon et whon?
#nar e wanted To 52y AL Ife Meetings =3 our 24 A Ke was apes_n=od tor py position.
CGAL SUPPORT 4N AL SUPPORE
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1 Q. Is it fair to say you didn't eriticize
2 his political affiliation then?
3 A Correct.
4 Q- Nguw, did you say anything to Steve
5 Riess, te him persenally regarding what you
6 percoeived concarning the alcohol and the
7 Elatulence?
8 A. Not those items but his not being
9  prepared foz meetirgs and things, I did discuss
10 with him.
11 Q. Ang thal's when you were both trusiees?
12 A. Yes.
i3 Q. What about after you became the director
14 of Parks and Recreation?
15 A That would not have beern appropriate for
i6 me Lo discoss any of that with him,
17 a. S0 aftez your employment ts Parks and
18 Recreation, did you crivicize Mr. Riess zither to
19 him perscrally or %2 anvene elsa?
Z0 AL Yes.
21 2. whe:?
22 A My nusband, my friends and family. I
H cime home from meetings very fzustzated that they
2 ran long or whatever because we couldn't stay en
LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 discugsed in your deposition, are there any other
2 criticisms of the defendants that we have not
3 covered that you have voliced tc cthers?
4 A Well, yeah, 1 volced an opinion to
§ Msa. Lebaite prior to Pam coming in regarding her
& hire.
7 Q. Prior to Pam's hiring?
2 A Correct.
L] . And she would have baen hired screwhere
Lo areund May of 200%, June?
11 AL Yes. And leading up to thal, we bad
12 hear working -- well, Jim Bassett had been lei go
i3 fxom the Village administrators had been let go and
14 qiven a severance package -- that [ don't krow whkepn
15 it was -- basically, that the budget did rot
16 account tor another Village administrator. I
17 expregszed my concern to Donna that we didn't have
18 ke money for a hich-pricez v:illiage administrator.
19 Q. Whet you oacce under the, we'll call i-
z0 the Feith tiunt adrinisrracion, was ~he Yillage
21  gretating in a snrplas of cash {iow?
2z A, For te ma‘erity of the time, yes.
PR . What abvut in say 2007, Z{C3, Z6C9,
24 cacly Japa?

Page 62
1 ask.
2 Q. Anyone else?
3 A. Hot that I can recall at the mament.
4 Q. And do you recall when these
4  conversations tock plage?
& A. Well, it was after -- the ones that were
7 afcer I was a trustee or during my employment as
8 the director of recreacton,
9 Q. Do you recall when the last time you
10  spoke to anyone about your perceived deficiencies
11  of Steve Riess?
L2 A Probably after [ was terminated. [
13 mean, noLhing after that.
14 2. Let me just rephrase i:c.
15 Fri¢r to your termination, d¢ you recall
16 ctke last time that you apoke with aryore about your
17 criticisms of Steve Riess?
18 A, Ho.
13 0. Raw, with respect to any of tnese
290 individuals, did you write any euitorials o:r print
21 any corplainte in che newspager regarding the
22  criticisms that we discussed?
23 A, Mo
24 Q. Ctnar chan thegse points that we
U, 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 A. 2008 and 2009 progressively. There
2  wasn't a surplus. I don't know. It was a marginal
3 deficit at that point, kEut 1t was going downwards,
4 Q. And as you slt hece today, do you xnow
-] if the village is operating in a deficit or a
6  surplus?
? A I believe in a surplus.
8 . Ared would that Include the salaries ot
9 all the individual defendarts you've named?
10 A Yes.
11 Q2. Now, other than that ceonversatlon with
12 #s. Lobaito about the hiring of Pam Mewton prier teo
313 her being hirad, had you criticized Pam Hewton any
14 way, shapa, cr form otherwlse?
15 MR. MORAM: Can you read that question back?
16 M. LAHZITO: [ will rephrase. It was poerly
17 worded. I apolegize.
13 a8¥ MR. LANZITO:
ig [ drher than that convarsaticen in May er
20 June af Z00% reqarding the hiring of Pam l=wion,
21 had you voicea any ~civicisms of Ma. Nawien to
22 anyore else that we naven't discussed today?
23 A Yas.,
24 <. Okay. To whem else did yout
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1 A, Jim Haiworm.
2 Q. And what did you say ta Jim Maiworm?
3 A. Basically the same thing. It was really
4 more the positicn didn’t -- we didn’'t have the
s meney to fund ancther Village administrator.
[ Q. Wow, Jim Maiwerm -- what was his
7 position under the --
[ A. The director of Public dorks.
9 Q. Let me -- what was his position under
10 Keith Hunt's administration?
11 A, Directer ¢f Public Works.
12 Q. &nd what was his position after Kaith
i Hure's position?
14 A, I believe it was the same.
15 c. And do you «<now who hired Jim Maiworm?
16 LS I believe it was Kelth.
17 = How, what about Chief Paulus, do you
18 krow her?
19 A Yes.
20 Q. Who hired her?
21 A. I ceiieve Xeita, I'm nor sure.
2z 2. D2 you knew if Keith and #s. Paclus had
a3 4 Lriendship before she assumed the positizn?
24 A. i hearc about it, ves, [ do knsw now
1% 8. LEGAL SUPPDRT
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1 Q. And who did you say this zo?
2 A. wWell, it was -- we went through finance
2 directers. It was Greg and ClifE, Greg Gehrke,
1 Cliff Wright about the fact that did we need a
E] full-time [inance difector and also Denise and
6 Christine Lubrich. It seemed again a lot of money
7 was being spent on salaries so...
8 Q. Do you know hew many posttions -- when
9 was she kired?
19 F 1 can't remembar., 1 don’L remembur.
21 Q. Okay. Was she an independent contractor
12 before?
13 AL Yes,
14 Q. Do you ngw --
15 MR. HORAM: Ll him finish his guestion.
16 TIHE WITHESS: T am scrrey.
17 BY HMR. LAHZITO:
18 Q. Beinre she was hired on full-time?
19 A Yes.
20 . dha hirad heo es an indeperden
21 cantracres originally?
22 A I balizve Keith,
23 . Okay. And do you Xnow how mpucn the

Village of Hawthoern Wocss was caying feov her
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1 currently, yes.
2 Q. And what do you knaw their relationship
3 o be?
4 A Friends., Actually I believe he’s
5 friends with ker father.
[ Q. Isn't her father the chief of pelice in
7 Lake Zurlch?
9 AL Yo, I don't believe so.
9 <. Co you know when she was hired by Keith?
10 A T den't recall. I deon*t.
11 Q. 2rior to being chief, do you know what
12 her highesi position or rank was in the police
13 department?
14 A. No, I don't.
15 Q. Do you know If she's still warking in
16  Hawtkern dcozds?
i? h. T zelieve 30, yus.
18 =N The last thing we talxed about was your
19 critigism Lo My. _cbaiie of hiring Pam Hewtzn.
20 LS Yes.
21 0. Are there ary other cricticisms about any
22 ol ihe named defecdants thal veu made Lo anyone
] that wa kad rot discussed yer today?
23 A, Yes, ¥8. Kazenas,
U S LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 sorvices prior to her bacoming & full-time
2 erployes?
3 AL Ma.
4 0. Do you %now what services she was
5  providing?
[ Al Budget ard flnance recommendations.
¥ Q. Qkay., So she's basically handling the
8 same dutiea now in-house as oppesed to being an
9 irdepeandent agent or an independent contractor?
10 A, Yes.
11 Q. Lo you know LE she wears -- besides the
12 Einancial duties, does she wear any other hats at
13 the Village of Hawthorn Wookds?
14 Al 1 believe human resources now.
15 Q. as that previcusly held sy ancther
16 person?
17 A. | beliave, yes.
ot} ja N e W 1w previous huran resouzees
-] marager?
2C A Cutna Lubaiio did QL Loz o while. Ii
27 xind of got passad azound. It wasn't a specii-
24 AAMAn ZASOLICCS RAYsch.
23 Q. Rut this is the f-rst rime rhe financial
24 responsibilities ana the human resourcs
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t responsibilities have been conselidatend into one
2 individual as far as yocu know?
3 A Ag [ar 25 1 know.
L3 Q. I have to go back one jusc briefly. Do
5% you need a break?
6 A, Mo. [ am fine. My back kurts. {'m
7 fine.
8 MR. HORAN: When you finish the topic that we
9 were on, I'd like te take a kreak.
10 BY MR. LAWZITO:
11 Q. That's fine. [ just had a couple of
12 thirgs ragarding the pool construction that [
12  nissed, and 1 apoicgize.
14 A, Okay.
15 Q. At any peint in time were you
15  supervising the constructior of cthe aguatiz center?
17 A o,
18 [e3 At any tume wore yeu aware of any cos:
19 overruns?
20 AL Yes,
21 Q. Hzw mich i3 cost overruns were there?
22 AL L think the latest hased on what the
23 depation was from Toll Brorrers are what the paol
21 was altimately peing ko ¢ost, 15 that wiac you'rs
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1 basis for Lhe termination?
2 A Yes,
3 Q. Anyche else?
4 A. Mo, I telt it was embarzassing enough.
5 I kind of wanted to keep it contained.
[ Q. And so you followed the advice of Dorna
T and Pam, just terminate the child withsut talking
8 o feil, correct?
9 A Gh-hun,
10 Q. Iz that a yes?7
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. New, you said that you criticized Pam
13 Rewton's salacy upcn being hired with the Village?
i AL Yes.
1z Q. And what was ner salary?
16 A Mith benefita, I zhinik it was close ta
11 $.00,000.
13 0. Okay. Aml there was a previcus '/
13 adminisirazor, correci?
20 . Tos.
2t Q. And who wag chat?
2 A Jin Bassett.
23 [ Are g yon knos wndl 1ls salasy was?
24 EY ¥zu knew, na, I donti.

Page 90
1 looking for?
2 0. Yeg. What was the planped prajec:t going
3 to cosk, than what did it actually cest?
4 A, 3.5 was the donation from Toll Brothers.
9 Ultipately I believe it was upwards of ¢ millien.
6 Q. So approximately a 2 and a half million
1 dellar overrun?
8 Al [ was qgaing to go with 2 mililon, but
9 yeah, I think it's about 2.5.
10 MR. LRNZITO: W®e can take a break.
11 {WHEREULON, a recess was had.)
12 BY MR. LANZLTO:
13 [+ There are a couple of chings we had
14 discussed £rior to Lhe break I just want to go back
1% ang cecver.
16 Bow, with Neil Horgen's son, I may have
1! asked, did you zalkx with anyere other than Fax
18 Hewran or Donna Lobaite regdro % Letindlicn?
13 A tes, <l1l Kragseth.
20 Q. who?
21 A. Jiill Kragseth. And it's
22 ¥-r-a-g-s-e-t-h. $he was my assistant manager at
23  the posl, and we rarminatad him togetker.
24 2 Undersctood. 3¢ she had 1o krow the
U 8. LEGAL SUPPORT
{312) 236-8352
Kimberly Lynch
November 8, 2011
Page 92
1 Q. As a trusiee, did you ever voie and
2  approve any ccontracts for the recention of a
3 Viilage administrator?
4 A, Yes.
5 Q. And do you recall what those salarias
[ ware for those Village administrators?
7 A T den't recall specifically.
2] Q. Do you krow what Village adminiscratoers
%  make gererally irn other municipalities?
10 A, Tes.
11 Q. And what 1s that?
12 M. I Lhink the range when we wero leoking,
3 when we were hiriny Jim Xrischie was anywheze from
14 depending on gualifications 80,000 to 125,000,
1% c. Tou said 892
16 A 20 o 125 was the range degen 9 cn
17 qaatificasions, bul Lhat was bagk when Jin Xrischke
18 was hiced.
14 o, And what year was Jim Krischxe hired?
20 Ay F003,
a1 D, And 22 vygu kncy what thoe naleries were
22 in FO0Y7 Do oyou kaow iF Lhay aee the sime, motw,
ar less?
24 a. i zelieve they are mors,
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Q. Qkay. Now 1 know you had a sign for 1 k. Corract.

Ms. Hewtcn. Did you ever make a donazion to her 2 Q. S0 is it fair to say that you didn't
3 campaigaY 3 make any politica} staiementis te him at tkat peint
4 AL He. 4 in time?
5 Q. How, let's fasr forward to Januacry of 3 A Ha.
6 2009. You said at that peint in time, Keith Hunt [ Q. And I think based upen what you told me
1 didn't run? 7 hefcre, IL's true you've never maga any pelitical
8 A. Yes. a statements to him at any point in time o his face,
9 Q. So you dicn't get involved in any 9 correct?
0  adversarial campaign against Mancino, Riess, 0 A. It*s fair to say. yes.

Corrigan, or ¥organ, right? il Q. New, in June of 2009, you saicd thkat's

A Correct. 12 when -- May or June of 2009, that®s when Pam Hewton

. In fact, did you have an cpporturity to 13 stepped in as the Village administrator?
reet tnem in advance of the unopposed race? 14 A. Yes.

A To mect them, I met Mr. Mancino fhreugh 15 Q. Has that title charged 2 chief
coming To Yillage boazd meetings, but Ms. Corrigan, 18 operating officer:?

Mr. Ansani, na. 13 A Yas .

. And you had coaversaricns with Mr. 18 Q. Okay. &nd at that point in Time, did
Mancine at those board meetings? 19  your posiiien chang2 at all’

AL o, 20 A, e,

2. $¢ sther than seeing him in the board 21 [« S0 your duties and responsibilicies as
mecting and fernapy you were -- one of the bLan of 22 the dgaatic center -- I'm sozzy -- Lhe direstor ot
you made a comment in cpen session, you Sidn's 23  garks and recreatien stayed the same?
scaak with either perscn directly? 24 A Tes.
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1 Q. Your salary wash't chaeged? 1 Village, right?
2 AL He. 2 A. Tas,
3 0. Did anyonc at the Villaye aver s4y you a Q. Were all of the enployees reguired to
4 were goirg to be terminated because you were hired 4 submit new applications?
5 by the Keilh Hunt administracion -- let me rephrase 5 AL Yes.
G that. [ 0. And was -- did Pam Hewion as the Village
7 Did any of the defendants ever tell you 7 administrator meet with pecple regarding the
8 you Wege going to be terminacted because you were 8 reorgarization?
9 hired during the Keith Hunt administration? 9 M. Yes.
10 A. Hu. 10 Q. Did anyone meet with you regarding the
11 Q. And, Ln fact, there is several 11 cegrgantzation?
12 individuals tram the Keith Hunt adwinistration -- 12 LY Yes.
13 several hirces from the Keith Hunt administration 13 Q. And every cmployce, reqgacdless of when
14 Wwho aze still workiang, correct? 14 they were hired, had to Eill out an applicaticn,
13 A Yes. 15 carcect?
[ o, Jim Halwern and Jonna Lobaite? 16 AL That's what T was told, yes.
=7 AL I dea't kaow who hiraid Dorna Laobaito. 17 Q. Did you kave to £ill cut an applicatien?
18 2. aar about Jim Haiworzm? i8 AL I filles are set witn Jim 3assedl, bt I
Le ER ves. 19 don't recall. I dsn't rewall.
23 <. Chiel Paulus -5 well? 20 Q. Jkay. Hell, as you sit herw today, you
21 A 1 kalieva zhe was hired Sy Heith, yes. 21 galleve Thrzstins Lubrich bad zo £il! ouz an
4 She is siill empleyed with the Yillige. 22 applicaticn, rigak?
3 2. tow, eventuvally somarime after PFam 23 AL Yag.
74 Mewton rook over there was 4 reerganizacien of Ine 23 C. And a8 you sit here today, <o you have
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1 any specific reccllections regarding conversacions
2 witlh dny ol the defendants regarding the
3 reorganizacicn?
4 A. Yes, during budge: process because that
5 was kind of where the reorganization started. We
&  were heading into budget, preparirng the budget for
7 the upcoming year.
] Q. And when is the budget prepared?
9 A, Gererally starts -- well, the fiscal
10  yea: chance then toe so we went from April to
11 April, and then we switched to calendar year. So
i2 we were kind of in a transitiomal flux there, but
13  normally it would start sometime around April, May
14 with a culmination ar the boazd meeting with the
19 koard approving :the budgect.
16 0. And was Ms. Kazenas handling the budgetr
i7 process?
18 A Yes.
L9 Q. Arc was she an independent cen-ractor or
20 was she an erpleyee With che Viilage of Hawthke:r:n
21 Woods at cthat seint in time?
22 A, The ariqinal szart of it I bhelicve she
23 was an independent centracror.
24 Q. And do you Know who ME. RaLe8las dds
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i AL My title. [ was ne longer resporsible
2 for the recreation or the Parks and Recreation side
3  of things. 1 wa3 now just directar of the aquatic
4 center. My pay was reduced teo 25,000, and it was
5 furloughed fnr four manths.
6 Q. So you worked eight months?
7 AL Curcect.
8 Q. How long was the pool in operation
Y9  during the course of the calendar year?
19 A. End of May to beglnning of Septerber.
11 Q. And then there would be, yeu know, lead
12 Lime to open?
13 A Stark ~-
14 Q. To open and clesing time?
15 A, That is cerrect.
26 2. And how leng would zha:t take, the “ronc
i7 atnd back ead?
19 A. Hiring of employees ard geciing tha
1¢  zrogramming up and things like that, coot up and
20 ianing nsuatly wenld ctart remciime around the
21 peginning of Harck -- wall, getting the program out
22 was It Ruy st chvionsly promotional was what
23 makes money., S0 jetring that ready usually started
21 February, 50 Lo get the program wver, hire
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1 working for at the cime?
2 A Sikich, I believe. I'm nol sure.
3 Q. ¢oh, an auditing firm?
4 LB ¥Yeah, [ think.
5 Q. As part of the reorganizatlion, was your
& position affected in any way, shape, or form?
7 . 1'm sorry. ¢€an you rephase thar?
a2 0. As part of the reorganizaticn, was your
9  employment affected in ary way, shape, cr form?
10 A Ulrimately, yes.
11 Q. Ckay. And was thac after the budger --
12 when you sald this was part of the budqet process,
13 was yeur pesition altered after the budget was
14 approved -- let me ask this way.
1% A Yeoh., I am trying to remember the tize
15 frame.
17 Q- Do yon recabl in Fall of 2339 when the
18 budget was approved?
14 A. K&, I din't rezall when it was approved.
20 2. Ckay. You said it was parz of the
2L rsorganitation, your position had been affecred,
22 roeet?
23 A Yes.
3 -8 And how se?
L. 8 LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 employees and things like that.
2 Q. So the actual eight months you weuld be
working in some way, shape, or form on the pool?
d A, Front and back end, right.
5 Q. Now, although you weren': a full-time
6 erpioyee, were you able to kaep your benefirs?
7 A, Yes,
g Q. And how did they allew you to keep your
G benefits even though you weren't a tull-time
10  employec?
11 A I'm net sure.
i2 Q. And Is Lhal in yoir expericnce working
13 #ith insuranze agencies, is that something that's
14 typically done for employees where they give
15 bennfits Lo pact-time employees?
L6 MR. MORAM: I'm going to object to rhe ferr
17 and lac< of laundalion.
18  BY HR. LANZITO:
1% 2. Well, lei me 13X yo1 tnis, were there
20 ary orker oty duals that worked at the pool like
21 yeur posl ranager for eigh: months just like you
22
23 AL Ha.
24 2. do you were the only une Lhat woold work
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1 fer eight morths? 1 Recreaticn, is that positisn still vacant?
2 A Carrent . 2 Al Lo.
3 Q. was anyone else in the pool sgaff 2 Q. Do you krow whe assumes that positien
q providez benefits? 1 right now?
a Ho. 5 A 1s it Parks and Recteation or is it
Q. Co you know of anyone else in the 6 director ol recreation? I belleve there is
Village thal doesn‘y work tor a [ull calendar year 7 somebedy in it, Kelly Carlsen [ believe s her
that received benefits at tkhat time? 0 name.
A Can you rephrase that? I am sorry. 9 Q. Mow, is ske the zeol coordinator?
Q. At the time your position was changed te 10 A Me, I don*t think she is the peol
an eight-month cut of the year furloughed position, 11 person. 1 thought yeu said Parks and Recreation.
were you aware of any cther employse at che Village 12 Q. And the Eawthozn -- your prior position
that was able to keep their benefits, although they 13 as dirscror of Parks and Reccrealion, you handled
didn't work for a full calendar yeaz? 14 Bteta the agualic center and the scheduling ot
A, 1I'm por awatre of anyore. 15  zecreaclons?
2. Aad as you siz here today, T kncw you 16 Al Cozrect,
didn*t lixe the demotion but did y2u think keeping 17 a. Qkay. HKow, when you said Kelly Ca:zlsen,
yoir benefits was someiring that tne village did 19 are you tal<ing about hrr sverse2ing the recreation
mecause yon bad been ap employee for o long? 19 d=zgartment ?
A I have no idea why they did i, GG . Yes. T thought that's what you asked,
Q. Do you know whether or not they were 22 T am sorry. L apelogize.
ever required tec give you benefita? 2z a, T'm Lilkirg abcur the posizion that you
A do, I'm not aware, 23 held whers under your umbre.la both aquatic center
2. Nluw, Lhe direcro: of Parks and 24 and tac :=creatien depariment were undec your
U, 8 LEGAL SUPPORT LS. LEGAL SUPPORT
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coulrgl. [s apyone in that peosition as the 1 Q. Okay. Mow, after the reerganization and
director of Parks and Recreation? 2 the chanying of positions, were you looking for
MR. MORAN: You meai had respensibility for 2 erployment in €31l of 20092
parks, recreacion, and the aquatlic center? a4 A, Well, 1 thinx generally you're locking
MR. LANZITG: Correct. 5 for empleyment elsewhere, So yes.
BY THE WITHESS: 13 Q. Did you use any of the Village's
A Oh, okay. Ho. 7 equipment including interner, computers to search
BY MR. LRAHZITO: 1] for jebs in tall of 20097
Q. S0 the position that yon cnce held for 9 A, Ko, not that ['m awacre of, no.
both of those cbligaticns and responsibilities is 0 Q. whe is Catherine Magee, H-a-g-e-e?
still vagant Lo the sest of your znowledge? 11 A sha {3 smoebody | worked with at R=H
LR Yeos. 12  Insurance.
[+ Now, you said ¥s. Carlson, do you knsw 13 Q. Do you know if in the fall of 2909 you
if she is a4 tull or part-time employee? 14 were corresponding with her regarding employmant
A 1 do not know. i5 with the insurarce company?
Q. Do you krow if she receives bepefisys? 16 AL Potentially 1 could have, yes. [ was
AL I beeligve she dens -- actuaily 1 do i7 thinking that was a pessikility, Sorry.
pelinve she (s a full-tire employes with henefits. . v Thac's okay. Ii's onily what yeu
. Ahat apout the povl moraver, the remerRe s .
poel o 2C How, with respect 10 your rzlacisaship,
AL T den't knew, She's pars a2t you xaew, with the deiesndants at that polnt in
LE.leve, 22 cime.  Tn 2007, woroe yonocovitesd to oany 1w
2. 22 you xnaw tf she zeceived bapefits? 23 Asliday periies koztad By any of the individual
A Ha, L dorntt knew. 2 detannancs?
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1 a. Pam had a Cheiscmas party, yes.
2 2 Did you attand?
3 A, Yes.
q Q. And she invited you?
5 A She invited zll employees.
B Q. Oxay. Regardless of who they were hired
7 py, right?
g A. Correct.
9 Q. And Pam paid for this party out of her
19 ownr funds, correcc?
11 LB I have no idea how she paid for it.
12 Q. In the fall of 2009, were you ever given
13 a reccimand for ingsuberdinacion?
14 A, Can you rephrase that, please. I'm
15 just --
16 Q. In the fall of 2009, were you aver
17 disciplined by ?am Newton, Kristin Kazenas, or
13 Coenna Lobaito?
13 AL Yas.
23 Q. For what?
21 A, Allegaediy not calling in sick and taing
22  at work -- by not being at work.
23 Q. Did you appeal or try te grieve that
24 complaing or that disciplire?
U. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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i lease or use of Hawthern Woecds' fields?
2 . ¥We didn't have a formal aqreement with
3 anybody so ncne.
4 Q. Okay. Other than the Ela Soccer Club
5 contract, did yau sign any other centracts im your
6 capacity as Parks and Recreation?
7 A. Renkal agreements.
€ Q- And rental agreements for the aquatic
certer?
10 A Uh-hnh.
11 Q. Is that a yes?
12 A, Yes. Sorcy.
i3 Q. And that woald be to rant a room for a
14 party or --
15 AL Correct.
i 2. -- clup?
7 AL Cotrest,
LE 2. talking about the lease of fields.
) Had yue signad any oLnar CONITAcis reyariing che
20 lease ¢f any HasLnooen Yeods' {ield wizh any orher
2l akhlec zluz?
22 AL M.
2 . Wwhen dld yeow Lirst seo the contract
24 petuncn the Ela 3gecer Club and Hawthern Woods in

Page 108
1 A 7 had & conversation with them when I
2 ceLuctned o work, 2nd it was my understanding that
3 it was agreed that it was dere and cver with.
4 Q. And was that before or aiter the
5 reorganization?
& A Immediately after the reorganization.
7 Q. Kow, at some peint in time did yoa have
a an occasion to execule 4 €antract between the
0 Village of Hawthorn Woods and the Ela Soccer Club?
10 A. Execute?
11 MR. WMORAN: Sign.
12 BY MR. LAMEZITO:
13 Q. Sign.
4 A. Okay. ! signed a contrackt, yes.
15 2 and let*s valk a little bit abour that
15 PIOCasSS,
17 At that zsint in time were you ~he
18 director ¢f parks 4ns Lesreatien for the Yillage of
1%  Hawthorn voods?
0 A Yes.
21 Q. [uzing vour tenare as the director of
22 Parks ard Fecreatien fer the Village of Hawthorn
73 Woods, hew many conbcacts did you sign with outside
Z4 slhletlc eltbs or children's Jroups reardirg the
1, 8 LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 say late 20077
2 wR. ¥ORAM: Do you mean like any version of
3  the contract?
q KR. LANZITO: VYes,
5 HR. MORAM: Okay.
[3 BY THE WITHESS:
7 A Thiz had been an éngoing process for
8 years. There was a -- so when [ was a trustee, v
9 had been working <n an agreement in different
10 formats.
11 ¥R. LANZITO: We will mark this as a group
12 exhibic.
13 {AHEREUECY, a certaln document was
14 macked Lyach 3xhibit Mo, 1, forz
15 identification. as of
L6 Hoverzer 3, 2011.)
7 BY MR. LAHZITO!
iF 2. ¥a'a~, “'r onanading you whazt's been
Z9 maiked a8 bxhibit 1ot yoav doposy ion.
29 AL ACEN
21 2. Zan yau )ust roview that real rast.
22 ©rce you have hed an cEBarmunizy o reviow iL,
23 plaasa ler ma knzw.
2. B Thav.
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1 Q. Do you recognize that document, matam?
2 A, Tes.
3 0. #hat do you recognize that cacument te
4 be?
5 A. What do 1 recognize lt to be? The field
[ agreement for Ela Soccer.
7 Q. Ts that the field agreement ycu
§ exacuted, you signed?
9 A 1 sigred, yes. Sorry. Yas.
10 Q. HWnen did yeu sign that document?
11 A December of 2008 == sorry, Decemder
12 of 2007. T know I dated it thac date. I dated itC
13 January 22, °'08.
14 Q. Okay. So you dated it January 22, 20087
15 A. Right.
18 Q. Are you saying that's not the day yeou
17 signed iz?
17 A No.
13 Q. whas day did you sigr this contract?
20 A, Shortly etter Tery and I distussed rao
21 Larms @f the agreasment 0 somaLine arcund the end
22 of Secember of 2007.
23 Q. Oxay. Can you tell oe how -- looking at
21 this document on Page 1 --
1L 8 LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 sigred it en behalf of the village of Hawthorn
2  Woocs?
3 A. We werked on the terms of the paymenta
q or. Page 2, Thare was other wersions of this, but
5 or this version that was the one that we wWerc
§ agreeing LoO.
7 Q. And when you say "we were agrecing ro,"
8 who wers you referring to?
9 A. Tony.
1 Q. Tony Cljon?
11 A, ‘Tony Cijen.
12 0. and did you have any input from the
i3 parks and recreation Committee regarding this
14 agreement?
15 A Yes,
T 2. Angd did you discuss the CeIms of the
1 agzeamens with the parks and reczeation Committee?
“E A wap until afzer it Was agreed upor.
B And ys: discissed ~het at Puarks and

20 PRagreation fzmilitce peellag?
21 A Yas
22 2. And yor were prusant {oc that meeting?
23 L Tes
Y Q. Amg uo yas vesall when that meeling was?y

rage 116
L A Uh=huh.
2 Tas?
3 A Yas.
4 Q. There is fax number ai the botcom and a
5 date; f=r the record, what is thac fax number?
6 A {847} B47-3502.
7 Q. And whose Eax number 1s that?
8 A, I doa't recall. ['m assuming it was
9 mire., I don't know.
10 wR. MORAN: Con't assume,
i1 BY THE AITNESS:
12 A I don*L know.
13 BY WR&. LANZITO:
id 2. and what date was that page faxed on?
19 A. Decerk:ar 10th, [ think. 1s that a 107
16 ME. MCRAN: Looks like the 182h.
7 THE THFSS: 13th, sorry.
it BY MR. LANZITO:
9 2. Okay. Aad ag any time did you mix and
20 match different verslcns of this contract be“ore
21 you signed tt?
22 A Yey, we were -- Yes.
23 Q. and which mages did you flip in and out
24 or swirch in and out of this contract belore you
1L &% LEGAL SUPPORT
(312) 236-K352
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1 A. He.
2 Q. And you spelled out the terms af ke
3 contract to the commitceo at Lhat peint in time,
1 Tight?
5 A I told them we were working on A
$ contract with Yla Seccer.
7 a. And when you say Woriing on a contralt.
§ this is after you and Mr. Dijon had already
g executed a final contrac:t?
10 A. Ho., to. We were Working -- we had been
11 working on this up until when this was signed.
12 Q. Signed by you?
13 A. Yos.
14 Q. And it was signed by you somelime at the
) end of Decemzer of 20072
id LR Correct.
17 o Se if Lhere was a me2ting in Jantary
] of 2608 with tas Park3 and Keazeation Lommitiee,
L9 the cocptract woald save Koen finalizned dnd dore at
26 that peint in time?
2L s ras.
2% D tt owoild nave been the Ruxg fen
23 A Yas, Tes.
kR . Sm yut woaldn's have gone and sigked 3G
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or altered il aller you sigred the end of Decembex H executed contract 1o the Village board in advance

2 of that January 2ind, 2008 mesting?

cf 20077

A, Correcc. 3 A. Wo, T dis not.

Q. And you would have repcrred to the 4 Q. Did you tell any of the rLrustees in
commictee the value of the contract and the tevms 5 advance of the Janasary 22nd, 2008 mecting that you
of the contract? 6 had executed a contract on behalf of Hawthorn Woods

A. Yes, 7 Wwith the Zla Soccer Club?

Q. fould yon have also tald Mr. Hurt? 8 A. No.

AL Yas. 9 Q. And vwky rot?

Q. Would you have also Lold the Bcard of 10 A It wasp't my -- that wasn't my
Trustees? 11 resporaibilicy.

A. That would have keen for them -- that 1z Q. And what was your responsibility after

would kave been For the board meecing. 13 you signed this contract?

Q. And do you knéw when the next board 14 A. To maxe sure that it got approved by the

meeting was? 15 Village board.

HN Iz was January 2Zrd. 16 Q. Okay. 3o Zid yzu present a copy in
2. And how do you knsw that? 17 order to do that and fulfill taese
A, Becauxe T stgned it in anticipation of ig responsib, ! 1-es, did you provide a cepy of the

the boara meeting. 19 sigred fzntract to the Village board so they could

€ appreve it in open session?

2. S¢ you signed it at the end of December
and put the next board meating date or the 21 AL Yor to the Village board, nc.
sentrace? 22 2. and why rot?
A Mersi. 23 A T presented it to Mayor Hunt.
0. Ard dic you pravide a copy of the Z4 0. ~nd whea did yeu present iz o Hayo:
1L 5. LEGS LPFORT LS LEGAL SUPPORYT
{3121 2306-8152 {312) 236-8352
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1 Hung? 1 Q. But other than saying he wanted a firm
2 A. [ da not recall that. 2 centract, did he discuss the gpayment terms ol those
3 Q. And wtat, Lf anything, did ¥r, Hunt say 3 contracls?
4 when you presented the contract you had signed at 4 A Mo, net prior te my signing it.
5 the end of Vecerkar to him? 9 G. Okay. So did you confer with anyore at
3 A lie Was unhappy with me and advised that 6 the municipality at the Village of Hawthorn Hocds
7 T did not have the authority o bind the Village. 7 regarding the terms of the Ele Scvucer Club contract
] Q. And what, if anything, was your response 8 thatr is Exhibit 12
g te him? 9 A Ka.
10 [+ 8 And to you recall -- did you speak with

10 A I was rot aware that I was =- I Lhowght

11 [ could enter inte an agreement with the soccer 11 Keith Hunt about the contract before or after the

i2 orgarizaticn cn this. 1z parks and recreation meeting where you halked about

13 Q. Did M. Hual say ahyching about the 13 the torms?

14 versien of tne coniract you had signed on behalf of 14 A [ honestly don't regall that.

15 the Village of Hawthorn Woods? 15 Q. And did Kelsh -- where did the

15 copversation with Keith take place?

i4 f. Yeah. He said ke would have pegotiated

17 i~ differerntly. My AL ¥ Lhe ghane.

1% Q. Su ¥ IL yuor tostimoay that Xeizhn Hunt 18 3. Clkay. And where werse you when you mads
9 wasr't invilved in the nagetiations wf tne Ela 19 the —all or where were you when you haz the ghone
*C dgecer Ulus goniracl 4b aay Lime prio- fa yeun Kdil onversacicn?

2L segnLneg i 21 A T think L was at nzra.
ks AL He wanted 2 Zizm agreesaol «1Lh Tl 22 [ Qkay. B wharn wes Weith?

3 g Lake furich Baseball 23 A TodIntT xngw

3 Safihsl]l Asseciarisn, 82 M wantea a4 CLim Contracs. 21 3. Sud he call veu or Jdid you call kin?

[
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1 h. I don*t cecall,
2 Q. And afrer you told him yecu had signed
3 the cortract, what, if anything, did he say about
4 the contract Ltself?
5 LN vhat 1 told you previously.
é G. He didn't like the terms?
7 A He didn'c likxe the terms.
] Q. What specifically didn't he like abcout
% che terms of the contract?
10 A, The payment terms.
i1 Q. And what apecifically didn':t he like
12 about the payment tecms?
13 A. He thought 1 was too lenient.
14 Q. And did you -- and specifically when yau
15 said you wera too lenient, did he specify any
L& re?
17 AL Ko,
-] Q. Okay. Is Laers anyrhing about that
1% cerversaticn cthat we naven't discussed yei?
2e A, That in addizien Lo Lhat, il was not -y
21 responsibility To be negotlatine agreementa with
22 othey organizations.
23 a. Dic aryone Lell vou that it was your
24  resporsibility 1o nejoriate tiess CONTCAcTs prioT
U. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 LY What meeting -- what date of the meeting
2 was thac, the Parks & Recreation?
k| Q. 1 think it was JFanuary 8, 2008 meetirg?
q AL I believe [ was still discussing that we
£ wvere pegotiating with them.
6 2. So altheugh it was --
7 AL T am sarrey. 1 apologize. Yes, the
g terms.
9 Q. So you tald them just so the recozd is
ig clear that pursuant Lo the contract on Page 2 in
1y July of 2008, Ela will pay $8,000, right?
iz A, vaah,
13 Q. And then there was a Village reserve the
14 right te reguest an increase of five percent from
15 Lhe previous years payrenl?
14 MR. VOREH: 1'm just going fer rhe record, it
iz wasn't presise, an Inztease pot to axcead five
19 pereent.
it ME. LANTITO: Duay.
20 BY THE WIITESS:
£l A Yer.
2z Br MR, LARILITO:
23 Q. Now, atter ven digned this ceptract, did

Aecger nlup, and o you

van give it back ru the &l

Nowvember 8, 2011
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1 Lo you jusk signing the contract?
2 A. to.
3 a- Art: wore there any other -- you sald
4 Lake Zurich Scfcball and Baseball Association, what
5 ware the terms of their lield lease agrecments?
[ A Bagically it's :zhe same contract, just
7 different wording for each of the, you know, what
8 Eld iy, it wouid be LZBSA, and then they had
9 differert paymert terms.
10 2. What were the payment terms for the Lake
11 Zurich Baseball and Softball Association?
iz A. I don't recall. They were highet than
13 this though.
14 Q. Now, at some poirt in time you went to
15 the parks and recreation meerimy, right?
i6 A, Lh-huk.
M 2. Yes?
18 A, Yo,  Tes.
i9 [+ snd you presented Exhibic 1 to the Patks
20 § Recreation Commiltee, rigre?
21 Al I don't krow Lf I preasented it, but we
22 did :alk about it.
23 Q. And ysu teid them what the iersms of the
24 payment terms were?
L5 LEGALSLPPORT
(312} 2368352
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1 siguad iz in December, late December of 2007, did
e you send it right back to them?
3 A, Yeah, I believe 1 did.
4 Q. Did you inform anyone at the Village
] that you had sent the coniract back to the Ela
& joeccer Club?
7 A. Ho.
3 Q. Wow, I know if we can leek at Exhibit 1.
9 you would agrge with me thag Pages 1, 4, and 5 were
10 all faxed on the same dake 0 the 3ame number?
1L A. vas.
12 Q. and than Lhe substitution would hawve
13 bheen cn Pages 2 and 3, correet?
11 ¥R, MORAY: I'm golng te oblec: to tha formm of
15 that guesticn cecausa iL just refers and igentify
16 apparently it was faxed on Decembnr L18zh.
7 Fage # auparently was faxed en
L€ Decwnbar Sth se 1 dea't think it could be a
T sebsrizunicn fop SIrethiag cnat Wai favent 13 days
20
21 it then.
2% By MR, LANIITO
23 Q. Prz vou regiace from bhe Eacsimile oa

o
.
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1 aid you supplement in o:r charge oul Pages 2 and 4
2 of zhe centract?
3 HR. MORAK: ‘You mean 2 and 3.
4 BY MR. LAKZITO:
s 2. ¥eah, the second and third page, ['m
] SOCEY.
7 A, 2ld I -- I included it as part of what I
g  signed.
9 Q. Okay. And did you esver see in tetal the
10 five pages or the pages that were faxed on
i1 December 18, 2007 to number 1 (847) §47-3502, did
12 yotu ever see the full facsimile?
13 A. I don*t kpow if Lhis was the full
14 facsimile or no:.
15 Q. When you were, you know, reclacing some
18  af "he pages and tems, eid ysu ever photocopy
17 those pages anz insert them isto the ceniract
- belore yiu siyned 1t?
1% A. e I m2an, | was -- we warg
23 negstiating se much thaz, yes, taey could have ceen
21 prelocopied.  T'm not sure.
2z 2. Lid you mairtain this zontract on your
73 cemputer at work at 4.7
24 Al Tes.
AL SUPPORT
(312} 236-8352
Kimbesly Lynch
November 8, 2011
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1 page?
2 h. Linda Uhl, yes.
3 Q. 1 assume you recognize that signature?
4 A. Yes.
3 (= Yeu'we seen that signature belore?
S L Yes.
1 Q. What was her positien with the
[:] committee?
£l A, She was a parks and rec member, parks
10 and rec committeno moember.
11 <. vas she like the secretary with --
12 A. Ho, they did it monthly.
13 Q. How, baszed on these minures, does it
14 refresh your recollection as to whethez or not yau
15 were orésent at that meecing, first paragraph?
16 R Yes.
1! Q. And lixe you said you discusned the
i8 (eLms 2f that coentract with The parks and cec
15 Ggermition?
20 A. oy,
27 2. Maw, kasad upon the minutes, LI you can
22 look at $2ction bF, were ~here any oLher socoar
23 organizaticns taac the Village was negotiacisg
24 frald Ieagsey withd

November £, 2011
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1 - Like in a Word format?
2 A 1 believe so, yes.
3 Q. Do you :ecall when is the last date you
4 egited Lhe contract or the zerms of the contract?
5 A Hoe.
6 Q- And then --
7 ¥E. LANZITO: Let's mark this as Exhibit 2.
] {WHEREUPON, a certain document was
9 matked Lynch Exhibit Ho. 2, for
10 identification, as of
11 Hovember 8, 2011.%
12 BY MR. LANZITC:
13 Q. I just want ke ¢larify, you spoke with
14 Keitk, you said, befere the Board of Trustees
15 meecing?
i6 A Ves.
7 2. okay, How I've handed you Fxhibit
_E Ho. 2, whizh 18 the parks and reczeation minutes
~9 for Tueszay, Janwary 3, 2208. Ts hat what the
20  docurment purparts Lo te?
21 A Uh-huh,
22 2. Ves?
23 A Yes. Yes.
24 Q- D3 yau see the signature on the last
1. S, LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 A. Ne.
2 0. Do you know whers -~ and I'll rfead it
2 fur the record. Is's Subpazt F. "Ke have an
q agreement wilh soccer for 58,000 in 2008, and
5 $12,000 ia 2009. The Flames have agreed to 33, [i{i]4}
%  in 2004, Basewmall is still in diseussions. Kim
7 will fcllow up.”
8 9id you repor: to the committes the
9 terms of the soccet agreement as 56,000 payment in
1C 2008 and a $12,000 payment in 20097
11 A The minutes reflect that, yes. 1 -- the
12 minutes do reflact lLhat, yas.
13 %R. MCRAN: 2o you rceall that ez you're just
K] sayirg the rinutes reflect it?
-1 TEE 93THESS: The minutes peflaer iv. I don't
16 zecall it
17 ME. ¥OPAN: Okay.
té BY HR. LA
Ty 2. Dooyou nave any r2asen, aw you sit kere
20 Lotay, b2 diipute tnpat yeu said that o the parks
zl o voozraniin Lormittee?
22 AL ¥v rrcellection 4 the sime was i we
23 haed rhig agreement of 33,900 a year.
S . 15 A gepy of thot exscuged - -

s AL STPEORT
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1 or stgned rentract to the parks and recreatliszn
2 Commiitee meerting?
3 AL 1 der't recall that nc.
q Q. As you sit here teday, did you ever
5 present a copy cf the contract you signed o anyone
6 other than Keith NHunt in the Village of Hawthezn
7 Woods administration?
8 A I never provided ore to Keith Hunc, I
9 verbally talked to him about the agreersnt.
10 Q. Now you were trustce, right?
11 A, Yas.
12 Q. How is the agenda or the documents that
13 we discussed in the agenda given o the trustees in
14 agdvance?
15 A Board pacial.
14 Q. And how is the boars packet discrisured?
17 Al It used to be age..vezed Lo var nouses.
18 How in the age of cemputers, 1 chiak it fusst gees
La out by e things lixe that.
20 2. Is Lhere 4 particular system? T8 it
2% like TFP system or semething llke that?
22 A. 1 don't “now.
23 Q. ET? system?
24 R I der't krow.
UK LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 wagkends somecimes for a Monday boarc meeting.
2 MX. LANZITO: One moment. §'m going to hand
k] you what we'll mark as Exhibit 3.
4 (HREREUZCH, a certain document was
5 marked Lynch Exhibit Ho. 3, for
& identification, as of
7 flovember 8, 20L1.}
8 BY ¥R. LANZITTO:
9 Q. As tho director of parks and recreation,
10 you would have recelved a copy of this agenda,
11 right?
12 A, Yes,
13 Q. ¥ou would have recelved it in advsnce of
14 the ageting?
15 A. Yes.
16 2. Do yuu rezall, as you it herae today,
17 whether &r o5t you rescived this agenda?
ig A. vas.
16 0. Tou win?
0 AL ves, 1 Hid reTteive .
i 2. Zan you turn to page +- leows like
2 Page 3 or 1, Lhe nurker in ke apger righi-hand
23 cornaz?
24 AL Yes

November 8, 2011
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1 Q. AS a trustes, Were you &ver Sent any
2 meeting packers e.ectronically?
3 A tio.
1 Q. Ard just s= the recerd s clear, you
5 never provided a copy sl what you signed to the
[ board in advarce so they could approve your
7 contract?
& A. Correct.
G Q. pig you ever see what the board did
10 actually approve?
11 A Ko, 1 did not.
12 Q. Okay. Houw, in advance of the Village
13 board minuces, would an agenda have been completed?
14 A. Yes,
15 Q. Ard what is an agenda?
16 A Jutlines what's going ro be discussed at
i the meeting, beard reeting,
15 [+ and hew far in advance is the agenda
19 sent out?
z20 A It's suppensed Lo De a week ahead of
21 tima. Diz nat always sscur That promptly.
2z [N Anz a week ahead of time, whaz's the
Z3 shortest time perisd you've aver seen it?
L] Al A pay, tws days. Hde would get 1L en
EGAL SUPPORT
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1 o, Do you see ltem V%
2 A Yes.
3 Q. And what ia Item V?
1 A A resolution acthorizing the executicn
E) of a gonsract wlth the Ela Soccer organizationm,
] Attachment 21B.
7 Q. pid you sec a copy of the resolutica?
8 A, tlo, [ did not.
bl Q. Okay. Did you ever brirg it to the
10 atrent:ion of the beakd ar anyoene else that you had
11 this signed contract?
12 A. Ho.
13 Q. And i3 there a reason why?
14 A. T was teld that it was not my
15 respansibility afcer this, after the prioz mishap
16 that it was not my gesponsibility.
17 [+H 2id Xeith a: your meeting ever tell you
14 to qct rid of th2 coptcacs that you had?
18 A, Ha.
20 o 1id ne aver -- ohan did he tell yon o
21 do wilh tac gigaed wopy of the contrict thel you

a1l havs?
hS e dida'r galw about it

2pdd yar were at the board meoting,
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right? 1 AL fes.
2 A Yes. 2 Q. Ard Zo you have an independent
3 o, And did Keith Hunt ever zring up the 3 recollecticn of being present for thia meeting?
4 fact that you kad autherized -- or you had signed a 4 Al Indecendent recollection.
5 ditterent vers:icn of the contract than wha:t was 5 MR, MORAN: He means as you sit here now, can
% approved by the Village board? 6  yeu pick that out ln your mind.
T Al 1 don't believe so, no. That's not my T  BY THE WITHESS:
8 recellection. 8 A Yes. Yes.
9 Q. bDid you at ar open session evar tell 9 BY MR. LANZITO:
anyone an the board tkar yen had signed this other 10 Q. And Fart 41 of the consent agenda, zhe
contract before they had approved the resolution? 11 resolution authorizing the execution of the Ela
A. Mz, I did net. 12 Seccer contract.
MR. LANZITO: Mark this as Exhibit 4. 12 M. MORAN: What section?
[WHEREUZCN, & certair document was 14 MR. LANZITO: Sectior 4, Consent Agenda
marxed Lyrch Exhibit tlo. 4, for 15 Subpart V.
iderctificatison, as of 14 HMR. MORAK: QCkay. Gor ic.
hWovembw: B, 2011.) 17 BY MR. LaNZ..Q:
RV MR. LANZITO: ie o B And thal. was dene in open sessicn?
o Ya'ar, [ shswed you what's Exhubit 4. 18 AL Yes. Well, i: was garc of the censent
These ate tihe Village meezing minutes frem 22 agenda, yes.
Januacy 22, 2009, correct? 2l Q. And you had been present fcr thac?
A Tes, they aze. 22 A Yes,
2. And paragragh 2 indicates thai you were 23 Q. DiZ yau sec a copy of the resoluzion ar
24 presant? 29 that time?
U S LEGAL SUPPORT U, 8 LEGAL SUPPORT
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i A Ho, I did not., I mean. it was in tha 1 you call up the Ela Seccar Club?
2 packet. 2 A HNo, I did rot.
3 2. Did yon see if the coatract was she same 3 Q. Did ycou 411 wvp anyone related to the
or Zifferent from the versien that you had approved 4 soccer ciub?
5 cr signed? 9 Al Wo.
& A He, 1 did not. 6 Q. How you were at the time that you sigred
7 Q. Did you ever tell aryore oither than 7 Lhe soccer agreement paying dues for Lhe soucer
8  Keith Hunt at any time about what tzanspired 8  club, right?
9 between you and ¥r. Dijon signing the contracc? 9 A Yes.
Q WR. MORAN: While she was omployed? 10 Q. Bnd part of Lhe dues ware based upon the
MR. LANZITC: AL any :time. 12 amount of cthe field rentals, correci?
12 M. HORAMN: Other than == 12 AL Can you ask it again?
13 aY MR, LAHZTITO: 13 Q. Part nof the membership dues had to deal
0. Gther than dr. Kunt? 14 with field rental and mainterance?
53 HR. MORAN: Ard other than yenr lawyer. 15 R, MORAN: Objection, Iatk of foundatien.
16 RY THE BITHEESS: 16 Ga akeaz apd answer it you can.
N 4, el Ma, IoglEatn opecad 17 BY TEE HEZS:
BY ¥R, LANITTO: b LN Tinyy jo towards field maintenance, yas,
] [ 2i4 you evar zell Mro Mizon or the Eod 19 BY ¥R. LANZITO:
A Brecer Clun #hal Lranspirad with the siening of e 24 0, And tleld pental?
cIntcact?) 21 A Ay the tine there waz n2 field renzal.
22 A L. 22 Thiz 13 Lhe first Lime LT was EBleld coatsl,
3 2. Heira dunt seld yeu, yeu did i3 Q. 0 prizr s 2237, Ila Soccer Club rever
24 Lot Eave £02 auinerity Lo sign PR 23 paid llawthsrn Wzzds £or the nse ¢f any of their
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1 fields?
2 A That's cortect.
3 Q. #Wall, when you were :Lhe secretary or the
4 adainistrative asslstant at the Ela Soccer Club,
5 id you ever pay for the mdintenance or use of any
6 of the fields tnat you used during your tenure?
7 L Did I pay for it or did Ela Soccer?
a Q. Cn behalf of the organtzatien.
a AL There were instances where there was
10 aeration, fertilization, things like that so there
11 was direct cost associated with the mainienance
12 that were invoiced by the Village.
13 Q. And based upon your experience at the
z4 Ela Socecer Ciub and the director of parks and
15 recreation, what was your knowledge as to where the
16 $B,00C rconta. fee, whare did that meney come frem?
b AL Their gencral operating fund.
ig 2. Ela Sscser's jeneral wpsrating Fund?
] A. Yas,
20 Q. pni hew =3 tne gengral fund for the Ela
21 Seccer Club funded?
zZ2 A By Zues.
23 Q. Ard cues are the fLees paid by the sogcer
241 club participants?
U % LEGAL SUPPORT
312) 236-8352
Kimberly Lyach
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1 BY MR. LAMZITO:
2 Q. Do you krow as you sit here whether or
3 not those tees 1nclugded a poztion of Lhe lease
4  agreement?
5 Al He, [ don't know that.
6 Q. Co you know what perction of your
7 merkership dues in 2008 went to field maintenarce?
] A Mo. FEla pever put toycther a formal
9 budge: to tell you what line items were going to
L¢  what. Trey didn't back chen. They may now. [
11 don't know.
12 MR. LAMZITO: [ chink we ave on Ho. 3.
L3 {WHERZUPCH, a certaln document was
14 marked Lynch Exhibit Moc. 5, for
15 idenzitication, as of
16 Hovembar &, Z011.}
17 Ay MR. LANZITO:
18 Q. T am gorng Lo shia yoy Giop wxhibit .
19 Have you ever seen this dscument celore or
) Aoguments?
2l AL Tan.
2z [+ ¥You ¢an lsoek -hraugh irc.
27 A Py, TSN
21 [+ When did you Jirst sees chese decuments?

L8 LEGAL SUTTORT
1312} 236-8352
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1 A. f agologize. Fees, not dues.
2 L and al tpe time in 2007, how mdny
3 children did yeu have playing Eor che Ela Soccer
4 Club?
9 Al in 2007, cne,
6 Q. And in 20087
7 AL Cne.
& Q. Ang in 20097
9 A One.
10 [+ Arc how much were the soccer dues in
11 thoae yeoars, if you recall?
12 A 81,300 a year.
13 Q. And was that inclixling the 38,000 lease
14 fee or excludirg, if you kncw?
15 Al 1 dor't understand the guestien.
16 Q. Okay. Let me ask it this way,
17 In 20CA, you're agpreximating tha- it
16 was S1,300 for your child to partisipate in Ela
19 Socccer Club?
20 A. Yes,
21 2. #And presumably that weuld include the
22 lease agreement?
23 MR. MORAN: I ¢bject ts the form of the
24 question.
L. % LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 A When they were preserted to me.
2  Whenever they were presented to mc as part of
3 questioning after 1 was terminated.
4 Q. Do yeu know by whom were Lhey presenced?
5 A. They came by whatever express mail or
6 whatever I had to sign for it, whatever.
7 Q. Now, when you were sitting ac the
8 January 22nd, 2008 meeting, did you ever leok at
9 the resclution or the Ela Soccer Club contract that
10 %as exocuted as a park of that resclation?
11 A, Ho.
iz Q. And whe signed this contract, this
i3 parcicular versien that's included in Exhibit 57
14 A weith and then attested Lo by Phyliis sc
13 Xaith Hun:t.
14 Q. Do you know why it was attested to by
17 Phyllis?
18 A Hatr exastly sura.  She didn's work for
G tke village in 3 walle, b yesh, T mean, ske is a
20 clark
2i 3. Ch, she i3 the ¥illage clerk back on
22 Janiary ?Purd, 20087
23 A I'm not sure of chat.
74 [A8 dell, Keiln Hunt wos the mayar, righe?
1L S, LEGAL SUPPOIRT
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1 AL {orrect.
2 Q. And can you Laok ar the facsimiiec llines
3 on cach of the pages irclufing the certificate ¢f
4 insurance?
E] A. Yes-
& Q. Can you tell me which date is on each
7 facsimile page?
8 Al December 18, 2007.
9 Q. And can you tell me which fax nurber is
10 listed?
11 A. {847y 847-1502,
12 Q. And that iLs on each page of this
13 centract?
14 A, Yes.
15 0. And that Lncludes a certilicate of
16 seryice on the lasi page?
17 A, Y.
18 o, As you sit here tcaay =-
18 M2, MCRAM: Certificaze of service, 1 tlunk
20 you meant to say cerctificate wl insurance.
23 MR. LANZIITS: Certificate of insuzance.
22 EY ME. LANZITO:
3 2. e yod know If Heith Hunt eéver gaw any
24 versicn cther than tne contraci he executad in open
L. 5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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Kim Lynch
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1 A No, that wags when { wis o Lrustee. I
2 apologize, I didn't get packet as an employee.
3 a. Were you ever -- dic anysne at the
4 Village other than Kelith Ilunt ask you about the
5 version e the contract that you signed?
6 A, Kot that T can recall.
7 Q. Did ysu aver get a letter on or about
g8 July 20, 2010 from Pam Newcon regdrding this
9 contract?
19 A, Yes.
11 Q. fas a copy of the contract that yeou
12 signed attached to it?
12 A. Yes.
L4 Q. Was a2 cortract that was acoreved by
15 resolutlon ernclosed as well?
i4 A Yes.
17 ja3 End afver you received tha: letter frem
o 3. Kewtan, whot did vou <da?
] AL [ contactad my iawyer.
<. Al o lawyer Was?
Al At the  Kalth fenc.
3 Why did yon contact a1 lawyer?
23 A To find out I I shou.d tespsad to the
24 leztar,

VLN LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 sessien?
2 . T don't know.
3 Q- Do you know what the Ela Soccer Club's
4 tax number is?
5 kW Ho, L have no idea.
6 Q. And you would agree with me that the
T signature of Tony Dijen on Exhibit 5 is the same
8 signature that is on Exhibic 17
9 A. Yes.
10 Q. And =he only sigratures Khat are
11 differenz are =he fact that Keith ard Phyllis are
12 an the contract approved by resolutien and yours is
13 on the Exhibit 17
14 A Correct.
15 Q. 3id anyene zell you not te bring the
186 centract you skghad io the attentien of the Village
17 at any time?
13 A, e,
19 2. 2id anyonc tell you prier to signing the
2C sgnbrach that you should not have siyred the
a2z azncrace?
22 A prior zo, no. [ wouldn't have signed it.
232 b Mow you said a pac<et was sant to ysur
24 righc?
U, 8. LEGAL SUPIMORT
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1 Q. fiid you -- and then some tirne you spoke
2 with Feith. I don't wanl te kncw what you talked
3 abour. AL some time fellewing the receigt of chis
4 letrer, you spoke wilh Keith Hunt?
3 A, Yes.
a 2. And Following your meering with Keith
1 Hunt, <id you contact is. Kewlon?
] A, On advice of counsel, I was told net to.
3 Q. Any partleular reason given why?
10 MR. MORAM: Objection. Altorney-client
1L privilege. MNon’t answer.
12 MR. LBNZITO: T beliove it's waived.
13 BY MR. LANZITO:
14 G. But are you cefusing to arswer based
15 upcn advice of counsel?
112 . Yoz,
17 MR, LANZITO: [ will el chat gues
ig BY MR, LRNEITO:
12 [sN Mow, 43 yon xnow it -- on July g€, PC1C
e when whis letter was senst, your clvil lawscit
> acainst tne Yillige was not pending, Cor rect? At
22 rau nat bean [ilad?
23 AL Mo, [ brlieve sha- is rorrect, Yoz,

And a3 yoi «ib here todey, ether thn
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1 whal, yon've told me, you have never giver any
2  Hawthern Weods official ar explaration of how the
3 conzract signed hy you cane to he, cerrect?
4 A Corract.
5 2. Excluding Keitn :
[ A, Okay.
7 Q. Do you know when the discrepancy with
8 the 3la Soccer Club contract came to the knowledge
9 of Hawthorn Woods?
10 A, L believe it was in the early part of
11 201¢.
12 Q. And how do you know this came Lo be ar
13 izsue?
| X A. There was a joint meetirg with Ela
15 Seccer and ourselves, and my contract, the contract
16 that [ signed wes Ela was operating under thaz
17 contract.
tH 2. Azl were yo'r in actendance at that
1% meeting?
20 [ Yes.
21 2. “ho else was irn at:tenzance?
22 Al Jim Maiworm, Pam Mewton, Lne presiden:
23 ot theis vluh at the tire, and I honestly can't
24 sacall wh2 1t was. It was a steve someone --
LA LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 tist him?
2 Q. Steve Horrell, They were all prasent at
3 this meeting?
4 A Yes.
5 Q. Was ¥ayar Mancino cresent?
6 AL He.
K [+3 Was Kristin Kazenas present?
g A Na.
E Q. And what, &% anything, wis discussoed ac
19 this meeting?
L2 Al We were working on makinhg -- there were
12 issues willl the ficlds. Jim was responding as te
13 Public ¥orks what they were deing, and then Ela was
11 saying we weren't doing enough amd how far, you
15 know, just basically field organizational acuce.
16 There were issucs adhered to jokes with giant
[ boulders in Lhe Ifialds.  Tr was just pasically zo
10 kind of clear the aii in Lewms of the relazienship.
] . Qkay,.  Asd Lnoe payment bLerms weee volcod
2C AL Lhis meocinng?
27 Al Mo, they were noc.
22 Q. G<ay. So the peating you're talkiag
13 abont did not have to feal with the two differen:
&t TeRLEActs?

W~

oo &

i

B
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1 Morrell and Gin Sharma, S-h-a-r-m-a, and Jackie
2 Meorray was sitiing ic the rwom off to the side.
3 She wasn't partlcipating in the mesting. but she
4 was in attendance.
5 Q. And where was thia meeting?
8 A. Ela Soccer,
7 Q. And were you on furleugh at this time?
[ A, Na. Ho.

Q. Were you still working at the Villuge of
Hawthorn Weods at the tine?

A Yes. VYes.

Q- 8t it was in 20107

A, No, 2009.

Q. Sarly 2009?

A. Fou know what, [ car't recall the day,
but it was prior to me going on furlzugh. [ do
know Lhal. [ just dor't recall the date
specifically.

2. S2 that would nave been somerime i the
fall <f 20042

A, I think so, yes.

Q. And Jim Maiworm, Pam Rewtsn, yesurself,
Gin Sharma, and Jackie Morrav, and who else?

Al The presicent, Steve Morrell, Did you

L5 LEGAL SUPPORT
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A, ch, no. Ho:x at all.

MR. MOR&N: You misunderstood the previous

Guestion.
BY THE WITIESS:
A, T gaass [ did, yes. We had 2 meetirg.

ard then it came up at the end of the meeting and
ther that was Lhe end of iz,

¥R, MCRAM: Ho. Ilis question was after Lke
contract Lhat was signed by Keith Hunt, do you know
when the pesple a4l the Village of Hawthorn Waods
became aware that there were two ¢ontracts out
there, ene signed by Keith and one signed by you.
That was the questien.

THE WITHESS: Ckay. [ got oft on a tangent.

MR. MORAM: D2 yocu know when tha Village
Yearngd of that?

THE ®ITNRSS: e, 1 do not,

BY MR, LARZITI:

z veu kg -- you 3aid you do

. Qray.
Rat now?
A I a3 not %AsW.
9. Did anyche whila you wers omployed et

che ¥illage quastiza ysu apoir Lhe Twd feniracts

and the discrepancy betwaen rac Lva?
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1 A, No.
2 Q. Qkay. At the meeting in which you were
3 termirated, that was never brougat up, right?
4 A Correct.
5 e, Cther than this July 20, 2010 letter,
6 dio the Village make any othe: attempts with you ta
7  determine the origin of the other cantract which
8 caused a discrepancy?
] A, Yes.
10 0. When?
11 A. There was a phone call from Chief
12 Paulus.
13 Q. When was that call?
14 A August, September, around then.
15 o And which?
15 A I believe T gat a second letter.,
17 Q. was that in 27102
L8 I ves.
19 o And what did Chief faulus fay to you?
2c K. 3he asved that | come :n and alscuss Lhe
21 Zla Boccer ayruemunt, Ard T believe that was ic.
22 Really just you car ceme in.  You can speak o me,
23 Fou znow, and that was it, It was just as a matter
24 of Iact that we'd like you 9 come in and discuss
U. 5 LEGAL SUPPORT
1312) 236-8352
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1 o. QF 20117
2 fes == ro, {L was -- I was picked up on
3 my husband's birthsay, Juse 6th, 1 apologize. It
4 was June Sth,
5 Q. June 5th of 2011?
6 A Tes.
7 Q. And whe picked you uvp?
9 A No one picked me up. [ turned myself
9 in.
10 2. Okay. And <id you ever see a copy of
1l the warrant?
12 LB Yeu, I did. My actorney presented it to
13 e,
14 Q. ho signed the wirranc?
13 A Ch, goesh, I don't knzw. You know waat,
Li I don't recall,
17 2. Do you knew w50 sijned the criminal
15 complaints Sv Llaryes?
0 AL HIN
2C = 2o you have cepies or those zrixinal
21 docurents?
22 AL Yoz, T do at home.
23 HE. LAKZITO: Terry, can [ get a copy of
di Lhese?

Fage 146
1 thke agreemant.
2 Q. And what, if anything, was your
3 resgonse?
4 [ T did not respond te tke phone call,
5 Q. Oh, It was just a voicerail she left?
] A, It was a voicerail she left me. Sorry.
7 I was at work, and she leaft it on my cell phone.
B Q. Ccher than that pherne veicemail in
&  August or September of 2019, were there any other
10 corminications between the Village and yocurself?
11 A, Regarding?
12 Q. Regarding the saccer club coeatract
13 discrepancy?
14 A, Do yosu call getting arrested concact?
5 2. Did the village zalx to you at that
16  psint ia time?
17 Al Yes. Chlef Paulus left a voiczerail
18 message for me and indicated there was an a:resl
13 Wellant oul for mo, tws felsny 2ount3 and an arras:s
z0 warrart out Ior me, and then [ would be picked up
21 at erny time within tne Village boundaries.
2z o, Ckay. ‘then was that phore call?
23 AL I think 1 would kave it in ch_se_ed into
24 Yy brain, Seprember.
L. S, LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 HR. MORAN: Sure. We'll get them and give
2 them to you. [ assumed you had them.
3 BY MR. LANZITO:
4 Q. New, 3ust gaing back té the Keich Hunt
5  version, Eahibit 3. Did he ever make any charges
[} te that documentc in apen gession?
7 A Mot that T recall.
8 Q. So IL's your understanding the version
g Lhat was faxed over to the Village in its entirezy
1c i3 a version tpat was signed by him in open
11 session?
12 A 1 belizve so, yes.
13 Q- Mow, would you consider Chief Paulus a
14 [riend?
1% A Ne.
6 Q. Even bofore you were termipated [zom the
17 Village ¢b Hawkhhora Vnods?
TR A A acguaintance - 4 wark aolleduvie.
e 2. 2kay, And uny woldatr you ¢onsiders his
0 & -
21 L% We navar -- we aidatt really sociatize.
22 o y raason way?
Y AL Bt
i FE. Toerry, Lhis is sprebably @ good
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psint te heceak for lunch.
{WHEREUPGR, a recess was had for
3 lunch.)
BY MR. LANZITOC:
5 Q. 3. Lynch, you remembar you're still
6 crder zath, tight?
7 A Yes,
Q. { just want to talk zo you a little bit
about the management of the aquatic ¢enter?
A, Qkay.
2. At any time were you allowing groups to
use the facility without paying a remntal fee?
AL Just a more specific than that.
2. Well, was Lhere a karate organlzation or
club run by a gentleman named Martin &r Harty?
A. Yes,
4 2. Bnd what was his lLast name?
18 A Harcgy Meorris, M-o-r-r-j-s.
i9 - Ard what was the nam2 of his varate
sihool?
A Sa pan Cragen, I Eelieve.
2 Ang apzroximately do you <now how many
33 studencs he had?
i3 A It varied. ¥Wnen fe starsed out using
(L5 LEGAL SUFIFORT
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i whot days of the week it met?
2 LW Saturdays.
3 Q. And was the aquatic center -- was it
year-cound?
A. Yes,
Q. Tn the winter as well?
AL Yes.
Q. #Aas the aquatlc center open in the
winter cn Saturdays?
Al Ha taught his class on Satucday mornings
there.
Q. Okay. 9%as Lhere any cepreseatative from

the Village of Hawthern Woods at Lhe aguatic center
to open it up for him?

Al [3-H

2. Dic Marty Macris pay any lease or foo to
the ¥illage of Kawlhzrn Yoods?

A La pais

TEE RITURSS: 00 yau want me I 2 in'o

sletarls of thac?

HP L DR sure,
8y 'rdE WITKELS:

A te eriginally was ab Lae Yillage Bazn
prier te my iocrikiiy alrector of regreation. He

U5 LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 the VYiilane Barn, he was prebably 20 or so. 1t
2 dwirdled dewn as the scoapmy changed and things
3 like that. He could have been anywhiire between
4 Zive and ten depending on the week.
5 Q. And did he have a key Lo the facility?
6 h. Yes, he did,
7 Q. Khat tyce of key?
& A Just a general key.
9 Q. Is there somclhing called a master key?
10 A. es.,
11 Q. %hat ‘s a master key?
12 A. 1t cpened all locks in the village.
13 Q. Do you know if Marty had a master Xey?
14 A lie sheuls not have had & master key.
15 Q. Do you knsw how Marty got the key?
16 A, tin, T Hon'k.
L3 Q. Diz ysu ever qive Markty a key toe the
18 facility?
19 AL Ta the aguat.s zenter, yes.
z0 Q. %as that & raster koy or a4 regular key?
71 A. Rogular key.
22 Q. ¥as there a 12ase ayraement -- girike
23 thar.
4 KNeow, this kardle schosl, do you <now
U. 8. LEGAL SUIPORT
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1 had a rental agreemert with the village -- I
2 beliove he had a rental agraement with che Village
3 az Viltlage Hall. 5o he cperate:d his class eut of
4 village Hall up until the aguatic center was onilc,
5 Then Mayor Kurt said, you know, we've
) got this facility over rere that sets up nicely for
7 recreational classes. Ha should be -- he ahculdn’t
8 be in Village Hall where we have onz meetings and
9 all that. lic nezds to bs elsewhere. 5o we naed te
10 move 4ll recreaticpal classes over in the Viiiage
11 Lo the aquatic center.
12 In deing so, there was no cofsmunigaticn
13 with anybody about is it going te still be the sare
14 rental agreement as the Yillage Barr, what he was
15 paying at the Village Barn. 1 quite konestly dzn't
LE knzw what ne wed paying at the ¥Yillage Barn Lo rent
17 .
ig BY ¥R, LANZITO:
1¢ 2. Ciay., Whena you moved him in the rpace
20 to the agatic cenger, did you lgar Zor a lease?
21 AL s, | odid net.
2z € Cid vou looct (i: & gartl
23 nsurange?

A, da. [ assumad it was provided ror ot

L5, LEGAL SUPPOIRT
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Village Hall.
0. ARrd at the time you moved Macrty Morris
and his xarate school te the aquatic center --
AL I didn’'t. meve him. I have ta correct
you. I dida's move him.
Q. What year was Marty Horris moved to the

agaatic center?

A. When it cpened.

Q. Se in 20077

Al Yes.

Q. S0 you were the director of parks and
cecreation at the time?

A Yes.

[ Aad that would have been over the
ajuatic ceacer and all recrearlonal programs?

A trol Yillage Hall though. %o lheze's a
Jd.stiactien. 1 didn'- have purview over the rental

2f Village Hall,

[+ Bul yau cercainly had pusview o¥tr ihw
ceater?

AL Tes.

<. and you supervissa 2nd narigic cthe

aguatic cevter?

. Yes,

2

(=TT - T Eo

November 8, 2014
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1 Q. And the facilities therein?
2 h. Yes.
3 9. And that was your responsibility

pursuant o your docies and ebligations as a
director?

A. Yes,

MR, MORAN: let her finish., You started to
digress and T don*t blame Demicick for asking
anotier question, but you never finished answering
the guestion of what were the payment acrrangerents
that you had with him when he was at the aguatic
cenker.

B8Y THZ WITHZSS:

A, We got -- I didn't krew Marty from hAdan
when we first started, and he wes directed trwards
me at the aguatic center. We got irte a
conversation abous what his capabilities were. In
addition le Jsing the facllity, | was like, dell,
what @lse do you do?

de said, Well, I teach, you kndw, kick

axing, tae kwon do -- not tae wwer do -- abw,

giuts, and thighs. He had ather capab: ies in

chysizai tLraining, personal ir ing.

50 in se:-ing up programming, I said,
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Well, maybe, you Xnow, you can do some programs for
me, and than so we <ind ¢f went back and Zorth on
that. He would pay, and this is an approximatien.
We would pay him 25 parcent of his receipts [or
what he brought in for those classes -- no, we
would keep 25. We would pay him 7%, sorcy.

In doing 50, we would also get a
gercentage of his taes kwon do classes 50 it was nat
tochnically a leasc agreement.

RY MR. LANZITO:
Q. Okay. And who Xnew about the terms of
this arrangement with Marty Horris beside yourself?
MR. MCRAM: And Hariy.
BY THE WITMESS:
A, And Harty, the twa of us.
8 MR. LAMATTG:
o tid you aotify Helth Hunk oz ényene alse
in teush with the Village adminis' racor about the

JEranjerent you raire o with Harsy i rris?

A Mz, it uwas prier 1o Jin Bamseit coming
LA Lk owasa't pricr e, but 0 was durirg
Lis - 0o, Iosdid nob. e, §odid rot.

b Andd you aever =eught a certilicaie 22

irsurance fsr his tae kdor do classes, which weos
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separate and aparc from any programs provided by
Hauthorn Hoods?

A. Mo, I did nes.

Q. Is there a patticular reason why you did
noc?

AL T theought the ¥illage already had it on
file.

g, And just so the recerd is clear, you did

nothing te chack on cilher a lease andfor irsurance
wich the Village Eor Marty Horris® agrmemeat with
the Viilage?

AL Ceorrece.

Q. The roneys that were being collected,

were they being paid to you?

L Ko,

o %ho wnte tney being paid to?

LS Che village of Howthain Woods.

Q. M wera yo1 keeping a log ol the

that wers ceing made?

They wera joing chrongh ReoTrac. it was

A

4 recTeltlonnl Lrasking mechanism fec recrentional

wities L1rn Lhe aquatic cantor 30 iU was cied to

rack both.

g Anz sid vsu fram Lime te tlme check to

U8 LEGAL SUPEORT
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see whal the revenues coming Into the aquatic
center Were?

LS veah, daily.

2. Qkay. And how much was Marty Horris
paying in 2C07 to the aguatic center on average?

A Hunestly, 1 don't yecall. For the tas
kwors €0 classes or for the abs, gluts., and thighs
and all the cther stuff?

2. For the classes he was hosting for his
karate school?

A. i don't recall.

Q. And how were the payments being made to
the Village?

A. Ee wonlud write a check. Although

sometimes I tkirk he did a credit card. I think he

did a credit card one Lin

Q. Ars hew =ften aould ne 2ither write a
chary o make a cred:t zard nayment?

A It was Lo £e at the end of each uussion
s0 cnce he krnew what his reg.stracion was, the
receipts would come in. and he would go o Village
Hall and make the paymenh.

Q. And what absut for the karate school?

A it was 10 ke the same arrangement.

L. 5 LEGAL SUPHOIRT
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. 1 don't recall giving him a key. T know
he had a key Cor Village Hall, ard if he was given
a master key from Village Hall, it would have
cpened the doors at the aquatic centor 4s well., So
[ do net recall giving him a key to the aquatic
center spocilically.

[+ N aad did you ever -- okay. So was it
while yol wete the direcsor of pazks and recreation
custerary to give a nenemployee a key to the
Aquatic center facllicy?

LN der customary. ne.

Q. ftow many other people or groups did you
glve u key to the aglatic center to duzing your

rerure as direccor of parks and cecreation?

AL Culver's, Hecausae they had an
irdependenl cencession area; the Jarzercise lady, I
don't wwen rarerkar hel name; apd yoga.  Those were
group Lnat Speraced gucgice of the normal peol
houzra.

Q. Qkay. &nd did you as director of parks
am! recceation @nsure that there was a Village

wnploves PEAIENT When Lhose Iroups were conductisg

tihedr wlisses?

Page 158

1 actually that was what I was referring to. 1

2 apologize. The other one, his recreational classes
3 that xe taught for me, I would take the receipts

4 cff of RecTrac and then do a requisition ro the

5 finance directar £o issue a check to him Zor his

& portion of Lhe receipts from the recreational

T classes.

B [+3 As the direccor of the parks and

9 racreation for the Village of ilawthorn Woods, did
10 you ensure that there was a Village employee
11 present when he was teaching his clagses --
12 AL o
13 Q. -- at the agquatie¢ center on Saturday?
id A He.
5 Q. id you have anyone check from the
6 Yillage of Hawthorn Woods, check e ensure that the
7 Zacility was preperly lozked up upen the cempletior
k-3 of Marty ¥srr:s' classes?
14 A. lin.
20 2. End just for the record, Harty Hersia
21 was rOT 44 ecployes of Hawthorn Woods?
22 AL Cerrezt.
23 2. Hew you said you qave him 2 key to the
249 aqualic center?

U, 8, LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 Q. Did you as thke dizector of parks and

2 recreation ensure that these individuals had

3 certificates of Insurance for liabilirty?

1 Al 1 requested ik,

5 Q. And after you requested that you get

[ certificates, wha: happened?

7 AL Culver's provided one., Jazzercise did
8 Erom Jazzercise. It was in a book that I had from
9 her., And yoga, I do not beliave yoya was sble to
L0  present one.

1 Q. Did you make tham cease giving classes
12 and take pack your key after they couldn't give you
13 insurance?

11 A He, i did net.

15 Q. And why ror?

14 AL Trey were rtunning a successfutl

17 zecreation class se T did not renuire it or remquest
_E ic.

1% P dew, did vou have lease egrnen
20 Lhe Jazzorcine ami yona clubs regarsing the uss of
21 tha facilizy?

72 h's o, 1L way¥ o poroentane af their
23 recelprs,
21 2. Skay, And haw wete you bl to

U8, LEGAL S oRrT
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1 caleulats the percentage of the receiprs?
2 . By what they paid towards what weat in
3 znd then we wrote them a check for the receiprs or
4 the percentage c¢f Lhe receipts.
5 Q. Bur there was no formal lease agreement
& with them?
7 A No, there was nol..
8 Q. bid you -- steike that.
9 Is there a reaseon you didn't have
10 someone go to the facility that was a Hawthora
11 Woods employce and cpen it up for these specitic
12 qroups to conduct their classes as oppesed to
135 giving them a key cutright?
14 A. It was reaily budgetary for no other
t5 reason. There was ts be no overtime. We were
14 really operatirg on a shtestring budget in Lerms of
17 mazing sure that tha anquatic center and the
18 recreatioLal programs were profitable so I did ic
1Y as a budcatary meamurs.
20 Q. Did ycu sver disciss Law [act thag you
21 were glving out keys tc these groups with anyone at
22 the Villace administratien?
23 A Ho. : had teen doing it for Lwo,
24 three years moving forward so [ didn':z.
U. S, LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 A That's xind of vague.
2 Q. Well, dig@ you ever talk Lo them abzot
3 your demotion at the Village as part of the
q reorganization plan?
5 A i believe Grey, yes. Jim, probably not.
8 I dzo'c see him mach.
H Q. And whal, il anything, did Mr, Gehrke
8 rell you?
9 A Sorzy te hear it. You were 4 good
10 employer, you krow. I'm nct sure why chey did it.
11 That kind of thing. Just generally supporcive of
12 me.
13 Q. Did he ever say whether or not he agreed
14 with the reorganization or voted for the
135 regrganization?
16 AL Ha.
17 2. Did bLe ever say that ae cast a vete
i3 cgrinat the zesrzanizatien and the oliminazion of
] the pasiiion yeu crevicusly helaz
20 EW Mo,
2L a. What asout Uz, Silvers?
22 A, I diun“t o empversatizn wich aim.
23 Q. tlew ir the rall =f --
4 AL she's rigit.  Taey weren's on the poard.

2 Runt.?
3 A tao.
4 Q. Did you ever bring it up with V¥iliage
5  counsel?
6 A Mo, T didn't. [ didn'y.
7 MR. MCRAN: <Counsel, s-e-1, you mean lawysr?
a8 MR. LANZITO: Yeah, s-e-1. The Vvillage board
9 city couasal.
10 BY THE WITMESS:
11 A, Yo, I didn't.
12 BY MR. LANZITO:
13 Q. Mow your suit names four crusteed Lhat
24 were electad at the time -- or in office at the
5 cime af your <emotien and terminatien, cozzect?
) A. ves.
T 2. Who wers tne other two lrustiees at the
LE
9 A. Greg Gehrke and Jim dilvers.
20 Q. Ds you xncw why you didn'r sus Lhem?
21 A T falt that they were supportive of my
22 empleynent.
23 2. Okay. Did you aver tal< to them Sbout
24 vour efpisyoent?
UL S, LEGAL SUPMMORT
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1 o. Did you ever talk to Cliff Wright or
2 Joann deick, Weick --
3 L Ho.
q Q. -- reqarding your demotion?
5 A. No, I did aoc.
6 Q. And why aidn't you bring suit ageinat
T Lhem?
8 Al Joann was supportive of really
9 everything I wa3 brying to de at the aguatic center
i0 ir terms of recreational proqrams. She actually
1l was one of the omly trustees to ever participate in
12 any of the clasazs, and CLifl, same shing. VYery
1 sypportive. His kids had a membership. He had a
14 membership at the aruakic center. He was
15 supportive of the anuatic centec in general; and so
iB therefore, I il not.
7 2. D you Aave any intocmation to believe
M amz Jaann either pacticipated or did ret
149 participate tn the wole appreving the
20 1eorgan:2aLisn’
2L A, i, " o nct have any idea of that.
2Z o s vou “qave any intormation, one way ot
23 arotier, shathar or 2ot these -wo individuals
23 ated on any wiy. shape, er fozm regarding
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your tarmination? 1 0. Either way?
2 A, Ha, 1 doen': heve any xnowladge to that 2 A, Yes. Correct.
3 facrt. 3 Q. and whether or not these four Trustees
4 Q. As you sit here today, do you have acy 4 either supported or didn't SupperL your
5 kncwledge that any of the other trustees casted a 5 termiration, ysu have nc information?
6 vete one way or another regarding your demotion? s A correck .
7 A. He, [ do net. B Q. Now, when you spoke with Greg Gehrke
Q. And d¢o yeu have a -- as you sit here ] about your demction, he wasa't the trustee at the
today, the four rrustees you've named as 9 ctime, correct?
defeadancs, do you have any knowtedge chat they 10 a. Correct, and neither was Jim Silvers.
either approved or disapproved 0f your termiration 11 0. What about == did you speak with Cliff
At the Village of Hawihorn Woods? 1z or Joann at all?
A, 1f they approved of my termination? 13 A. Ha.
c. Yes. 14 Q. S0 is there a reason why you didn't aue,
M. Yas. They were present in tke room when 15 othez than the faszt they went to the aguatic
they terminated me so 1 would believe thai they 16 center, all of the LIustees that were on :hoe hboard
sere i1 favor of it. 17 sl the time?
<. Uno was present when you wrre 1R A. Well, they were on the hoard with me so
terminaced? 10 | #méw they were -- [ Just kasw them. and iz fel:
A Hr. Rancine, Ms. Kazenas, ard He. 20 like they were supcsriive. Let's put i: that way.
Lezaite, 71 Q. Weil, was leil Horgan also en the hoard
. I'm taliing abeust the folr trustees. 22 with you at tna cime?
A, { am serry. I went 9ff. Xo. The 23 A Yes -- | am sorry. Ko, he was not. Ee
23 trustass, 70, 1 don's have any rnowisdce of that. 24 was @y replacerent.
LEGAL sUPPORT U. S LEGAL SUPPORT
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Q. And he was appeinted by szrecena you 1 Q. Do you xnow what the makeup of the bzard
Lhing pretty highly of? 2 wus abt Lhe time of your arrest, the Beard of
3 L Yes. 3 Trustees?
4 Q. Kelth Hurt? 4 AL ke, 1 de not.
5 h. Yes. s Q. “as Dave Ansani on that board?
& Q. Lhnd Kelth llunt rever gave ¥ou any 6 A [ do not knew that.
indicalion to believe that he was -- Mall Morgan bl Q. A5 you 5l here teday, do yau know what
was against you in any way, shape, c¢r form? a involvemenz, if any, the deferdants had in your
LE Hot at -- Keith Hunt 2id not, no. 9 arrest?
Q. ticw, do you know wken Dave Ansani 10 L Well --
steppad dewn from Lhe board of trustees? it Q- Frem firsthand knowladge?
A. Mo, I don't. iZ AL irsthand knowladge, no.
Q. Do you kpow if he still lives .n the 13 Q. What expenses did you have related te

Hawthorn Weods? 14 yeur arc=sL?

A Ha, [ don'z. 13 Al $2.000 lawyer feoe and it was ociginally
9. When o you know whern the last fire you 14 there was going to be a bens, but taal was walved.
3w ciim in Hawthozn Waods? 17 I had a persoral aye kond,
A. He walked by his house ane rizy LW years 18 2. 50 you dig a recogaizance bendr
#39, aai that's the law' time I even saw nim. He T A,
Wwas mowing his lawn. 20 < Andd wnat huppened with Lhat crimna.
o, THO yraLs ago? 21 maiter?
A. Vs, 22 A [ was -- what's the cermineleqy? I
a. Al <le you xpow = B wid with the retential to 2 rafiled if they --
A He was our doing yazd work, 24 HR. HIRANT If sas SCL'd,
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“R, LAMZ[TO: Okay. They SOL'd it. 1 A, 1 went to two, There were three
BY ¥R, LANZITC: 2  scheduled. My atzorney advised me it was okay not

Q- was it a misdemeancc or a felony? 3 te 3¢ to the middle so T went o the firat one Lkar

A. Feiony, two count felony. 1 7 was in 14il to get out. The sccond ene, I did

Q. Wnen you were arrested, did they bring 5 ast have to apgear, and the third ene, I did have
you into a police station? & to appaac.

a. Yes, I was in Lake County Jail. 7 a. And then the macter was SOL'd?

Q. Okay. Cid the state's attorney try to 8 A, Correct.
talk to you? g Q. T just want to talk about 4 couple of

A. Ho. HNo. 10  tke matters regarding the poal itself now,

Q. Did anybody try to interview you 11 At a certain point in time you would ger
regarding the allegation against you like a police 13 cash receipts at the pool?
eofficer, a staCe's attorney, anyonre? ] A. fash receipts?

A. Ko. 14 Q. Strike that.

Q. Did ysu ever see any of the defendants is At certaln sclnts in time you would come
at the polire staticn cr the county facility? 16 and get cash frem the admiszien Lo the pool,

A, No. 17 correct?

2. Did ycu have to g0 L0 ny cours 15 A, I genera.iy i wt handle che gash.
hearings? 19 The peeple 4t the freat scuncer aauiled the

A Yas. 20 receinis.

'8 i you aver see any of the detendants z1 Q. As che gfirestzt of parks and recreazion,
chere? 22 who would make the mepcsits inte tie banka?

hY wo, 23 A Our aither assistant finance director or

Q. Fow many rt nearings did you go ta? Fh Finance di-outo: or ssrecsdy like thar. [ would

' AL SUP
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take it over to Willage fall for them Lo ieposit, % R, MORAM Afser she go he dizecLive?
4% z B t th seclive?
2. Okay. 350 you would drive the money [zoem 2 MR, LANZITO: Yes
3 the aqualic center 1o ¥Yillage Hall? 3 8y THE WITHRISS
A Yes.
4 AL wWell, probably iwe weeis.
5 Q. At any time were you given a directive 5 BY MB. LANZITO:
[ that you needed a police escort in order to drive 3 9 cnee every two weeks?
. very ow ?
the money?
7 A Mo. Tha directive was around the middie
Al T was.
8 of August. The directive came down that T should
Q. And those directives that wero given zo 9  be doing this
o 13.
you, whom were Lthey given by? 0 Q Ck.
1 . Y .
A. ¥3. Kazenas and M3. Hewzoen.
' “ " it A I would make one cransportation of vash
Q. And what was the reason vy 2
¥ou were told to 12 to the Village -- I am sorry -- receipts o the
get a pelice oscore? 12 village Hali day
13 g iia .
A They were concerned about my safety. 14 3 A day?
4 - ay?
Q. Qkay. Ard did you, ir tact, call for a 15 A A day excapt on wegkonds
police cscort each and every tims you took the 16 o And when wsuld yoea close the pool?
n . when Ws il B 7
money [zom the aguatic center te village ilall? 17 A 7:07 o'vleck
1 Al i < -
h. [T =y, Hot rcach aed 18 Q. wi. What clime of yoar?
svRry time,
¥ in A, Ik, sorry. Azar lakor Day.
A Yout e saving o . 2 ' ot
e, Telutes saying you cvialled Lhe pol e 20 o, D%ay. And s¢ ouf of -- 1l Lhere was 'wo
escort wwizal
1l or thras weexs thare, wou enly called for a police
AL (es.
72 back np kwice?
3. And how often would yo. - Exer oo A
53 . ELEN
ariatic canter o Village Hall w.th the monay? - o i &
a4 D were there ever oceasizng whan yeu 004
LS LEGAL SUPPGRYT UL S LECAL SURIOWR T
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B the meney heme with you following betore you went
2 ks the Viliage Hall?
2 A Nlever.,
4 2. Were you ever told that you couldn't
s toke money heme with you by any of your supervisor
6 staff?
7 A, I don't Selleve [ was ever told that. I
a was -~ just seamed known.
9 Q- What was known?
10 A. That it would go right from the aquatic
il center to Villayge Hall.
2 2. And I may have asked this, why didn’t
13 you call for police kback uwp as directed?
14 A Just thought it was a waste of Village
15 resources so 1 didn't da it, and 1 was also
16 transporting the cash at early merning like 9:00 or
15 10:00 o'clack. The zriginal directive was thac,
18 well, if you're transferring the cash at nighz., you
13 could get -- yor kiew, the garking lot is darz and
20 all those kind of trings. So I completsly would
k3l understand It under those cirsumstancos, bul it was
22 10:00 o'clock in the m=ening, I Wwas haading ove
23 there For a staff meecing or whatever, and I just
5 didn't call the police.
L. 8. LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 a lo:t. e nad yourg kids rurrning che cash
2 regislers,
3 Q. Se Lhere would be -- yeu had more cash
4 Lhan you were supposed to bave?
5 A. ¥Yes,
3 [+ 8 New, With respuct to the zaintenance ol
7 pool, whal are AEDs?
] Al The defibrillators.
9 Q. And do you have to maintain those
HJ defibrillacorsa?
11 A Yes. They need to be checked gnce a
12 year, and batteries need te boe checked on them.
13 Q. And how often do the batterles need to
14 be checked?
15 A T believe annually.
18 Q. Whas?
17 AL annualiy.
ts o An did you keep legs of when ihe
13 r=iiprillazers were chacked?
22 Al T did not, no.
21 [+ Did you kocp :ecords of whon ihose ARDs
22 wesa malntdalaed?
23 A [ dicd nov, o,
4 2. ticw, %ith respect o wrapming up the

Paye 174
1 Q. Okay. UHew, with respect to the
2 maintenance of the pool =~ now you said you would
3 bring the money ir the early morning hours, right?
4 A, When ¥illage Hall was open.
S Q. Oray. So where wouls tha mcney ke
5 sitring overnight when --
7 A, In a safe.
B Q. And whare was the safe?
9 Al Locked in a closet in the central office
10 area ol che aguatic cencer.
11 Q. And how many people had access to tnat
12 safe?
13 A. Myself and Gill Kragseth.
14 Q. were there ever times when the cash did
15 not match up with the recelpts?
15 A. Yos.
17 Q. How often?
13 A I didn't do the firal ~- nar always do
15 tae final nighz recongiliakion. Jill wouid do it
23 s0 in Lhe morning she would report whal was chere
21  so it was what was oit of the Reclrac system so...
22 Q. And how often would you have the numbers
23 Ao macching?
24 Al Generally we would be cver. It happened
U, 8, LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 pool and closing it up, did you ever }eave chalrs
2  ang takbles oucside?
3 A. Yes.
q Q. And where Jdid you store them outside?
5 A Cn the patio.
6 Q. Were they coverad?
7 AL tio, kthoy were not.
g c. Okay. And was chere a place inside to
9  stere that equipment?
10 AL Yes.
1i Q. Bnd i3 there a reason --
12 AL Oray. Go ahead.
13 Q. You gan finish.
14 A fo, you asked the questien. I think I
18 can answer it nexc, Go ahead.
16 Q. Co you know where the chairs ard tables
17 JLe vurrenkly stored?
i6 A e, 1 do not.
1% 2. Jlave you driven past the pool 1k the
2C 1auL osuple of waeks?
2 a, Uhn-uhin,
22 MR HORAND I3 That a ne?
23 B THE WITY

A o, Zarry.
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BY MR. LANZITO: that scme of the children were experiencing burning
. Mow, wikh respact to the chemical sensalions, and T satd, okay, can you cell me

mairtenanze cf the pool, in 2009, low many days did

you have t= close Lhe paol due te chemical

imba)anees? basically was tryirg te figure cut exactly what was
A. Two, I believe it was cwo. going on.
Q. And was there cver a complaint of The pool had been tested, and we were

children nad suffered chemical burns?

A, ves. clecumstance as to how chemical burns could come
Q. And when was that? from an alkallne situation. 1t was znly kcys, and
A, Pricr to the closing of the pool. It that was about tke gist of it.

was June of that year, [ bhelieve.
2. S0 just when you were opening the peel?
A %a. You know what, I'm not sure of the

wxact date of ir, put there was an incidenz, yes,

Q. Do you knsw who the mayor a- ~he time SULLS.

was? Q. Was Keith Huri®s children cne of the
L ¥Yaycr Mancino. affected?
9. Ang whol type of complaint did yau Al She bai 2 tuilly 2mailed me a picture

cuceive vecarding chemical briuns?
A A verbal zomplaint frem somehody -- or
I['m sorry.

-ne call o me at Village

Tt wag a ¢

Hall advising that cheir childrén had suffered --

exactly what's going on, and she indicated ir was

the boys primarily. Mo girls had -- you know, I

Tore alkaline than acid so it was a strange

I mean, I guesticned her more on exaccly
what kad happened. Was it their eyes, where on
their hodies, and that's when it came down to the

fact that it was only in their swim shorts, swim

tre day after this and showed thaz Kevin, his

irritactiens were on nis belly, and shke ralked about
that having dry sxin, being ouc irn ths sun alil day,
and zeing at the pool zll day, but she just wanlml

LO mi«e me eware of tke situatica.

118 LEGAL SUPPORT U, 5 LEGAL sUPFORT
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Q- You said that the pool was alkaline. that, and it had been ongoing for the whole summer.
Can ysu gec chemical busns [rom an atraline llquid? 2 Thete were literally pisprick holes in she chemical
A T don‘e knew that. 3 feeders, and it was plastic tubing that ran all
Q. And you zaitd you tested the poel and it 4 over the ceiling. The ehlorine would spew. You
was more alkaline cthaa acidic? 9 could literally walk in there, and chlotine would
A Yes. [ be spewing cut of the ceiling.
Qe New, hew many boys wsre affected by 7 [ prd did you Eill out a work reguest
these chemical burns? 8 order sr regair order?
A. That, we never pinpointed. T WAZ MOrE o . Je didn't have Such a —-
than three, and the pool was at o peint where it MR, MORAM: -- a ferm.
was starting te tuen in terms of lesing the 1 BY TRE WITHESS:
chemical balance on it. It was stariing to turn 12 Al -- a form.
slightly gzeen se L consulted Mr. Maiwerm, our 13 BY MG. LAWZITG:
Public Werks cdirecter as Lo what we should be deing w4 2. Did you ever notify Village
at this paint. 5 admiristration of the groplems chat yon wers having
our fecders, our cnemical feedars were 16 witk the ch T feentors?
inopecable, just a mes3. [iterally chlorine was 17 A © dan't kmsuw 1€ I did Lhe
spewing eul of the se:liags an to the calibracers, iE agmiristraticn. T oid certafnly lez Jim Haiwnrw
and this rad been »a znyzing issue Sso [ nseded -9 rour.
asaihtance frem a Publiz Werks dizeclov. 20 o gkay. Cther than -- did youw nolify
9. Kew long grizr 3 chese chemieal buons 7 veith Hung of thz lasie?
were you having priblers with 'ne chumical feeders? 22 N 4y was aware of it rheouwdh his
A Hell, the teaders wers not The issus. ] admiriscracisn so a0 was awars chere was an iswue
e were having trouble wilkh the piring prier o 23 wite the chemizal fseder ~- wilh “he constructict
CoS LEGAT SUPPORT 1% S LEGALSUPPORT
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1 af the piping, that it was an issue.
2 Q. Oray. But whon this incident broke out
3 with the chemical burns, did you talk Lo Keith Hunt
q before you talked to the Lhen current Village
5 administoation?
% L% Ho, this wes our matter, and it needed
7 cta be taken care of,
i} Q. Gkay. When was the first time you
9 Lalked to #eith Hunt regarding this igsue?
10 A I don't recall.
11 C. pid he ever advise you to shut down Lhe
12 pool?
13 A. No.
14 L*H Based upon the [act that you got
15 chenical bicas, did you ever report it to the
1€ Illincis cepartment of Health?
17 A, Ho.
18 G Jid you ever fill out any irncidenl
1z 1EESELS?
2¢ AL Ho, 1 did not.
H o 2id you nver bring it up at ary parks
22 ani recreation Commizzee meecing?
Kl Al T don's recall.
24 G Tid you bring it up with the Village
V. 8. LEGAL SUPPORT
{312) 136-4352
Kimberly Lynch
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1 to put a budget requisitien in as the depactment
2 head?
3 i Yes,
L] Q. For your 2010 budget, did you ever put
5 in a request for a repair stipend te repair these
[ chemical feeders or anything else in your 2319
7 budger request?
8 Al I don't recall. I met with a geacleman
9 frem Halogen to get ¢ quete on a replacement System
10 for the chemical fseders.
11 Q. Has that for chemical fesders or was
12 that For the Virginia Gracme Baker?
13 A Both, He came out and icoked at both
14 izems,
13 Q. &nd when did he coms ont?
14 A He core out several times. The maa from
17 Hilegen care out saveral times ror the chemical
i teerdrrs eeause he wantad to make s he §9T a0
ia 1dea of the scope of the project and what our
20 Facilecy needed, and then T did olse conaulc wita
21 Zenetqes, who originally beilz the pzzloond nad
2z 1hu ehemizal feedars mo Zinm vyt f they had Lusues
23 sith this in ather peals g
24 Cse repalr was.

Nuvember 3, 2011
Page 182
1 board at all?
2 A. I discussed it with Mayor Mancino and
3 M3, Newton during our ongoing conversations, I
4 don't recall bringing i< up &t 4 Village board
3 meeting.
[ Q. 0id thkey instruct you to gat an cutside
T chemical scrvice?
B A, ¥o, they did not -- well, I'm not
k] definitive. {'m noL sire. They may have in
10 cocoversation,
11 Q. And with the chemical teeders being
12 broken, how were you supplying chemicals to che
13 pocl?
14 R Well, can we finish the story about the
15 chemical kurns and what happensd after that?
i6 2. ¥as. Go ahead.
17 AL Becadse we broughs in an eutside pool
13 sarvice because cur Tublic Works Department zzuld
13 net handle the situalion. %0 wkat haprcned was, wa
20 contacted Tim Q'Cornor, whose nrethar~in-law ran an
21 cutside pool service, and he came in and brought
22 the ppal back. So woe Were shut down for two days
3 za Bring the ool back.
24 o Okay. How, nach and every vyear ycu have
U. S, LEGAL SUPPORT
1312} 2364352
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1 They tecommendad just replacing the
2 tubiag, and thac didn’t work so [ cesorted o going
2 to Kalegen to do a different type of leeder
4 program -- cr system becouse clearly the tubing was
3 not working.
6 Q. when did you do that?
r A. Throughout 2098 and 2009. This was a
8 problen in 2003 as well.
9 Q. Did you put a request in 2008 So have
0 the system repliacad?
1L A Ho.
12 Q. Did you, pricr to the opening in the
13 2009 season, hefore the Soys were burned, did you
i4 put a request in te change o1t the chemical
15 facders?
16 MR. MORAN: I anm geing to object 10 the form
17 of the questizn., It assure: that thoy were
L& acsually Bucrs. I oden't think the evideacs will
19 shew that.
20 nY THR WITIESS:
i1 AL Car you rueeeat Iag gaestien?

(312) 2M-8352

BY MR, LANZITO:
Q- friur ts Lhe allegad chemical tmzins 1a

200%, had yer put in A Colesh Lo replace She
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chemical feoders? 3 Q. Ckay. hnd che pool was closed tor twa
A, Np. We thought the replacement of the 2 days because of this?
3 tubing was sulficient te rectify the sltuatien. 3 A. Yes.
4q Q. And did you cver call Greg Gehrie aboul 4 2. ow, did you ever mozify -= [ am sorry,
5 the chemical burns? 5 tke chlacine, it was a liquid-based chlorine,
S A, I pelieve I did becavse I did asx him if 6 right?
7 this was possible, if what was being discussed =- 7 A. That was liquid based, yes.
or alleged, excusa me, was poassible, g Q. And it wozld be in a2 Tank% and
Q. And why did you ask him? 9 distributed by those feotder tubes?
A Ha's in water Lreatment. That's his 10 I Correct.
profession, 11 . Did yoir ever notify the company thal
Q. and what did Greg Gehrke tell you? *2  supplied tha chlarine, the tiquid c¢hlorine about
A, He said he didn't believe so. 13 the deficlencies with the tube system?
Q. Did you actually have the water tesied 14 A. No.
to determing what the priblem was? 15 . An3 at cne ceint were you directly
A. tes, thal.'s when we brought in the 16 durping chemicais intz a pool?
bl ourside paocl service. 17 ' vasg,
C. Ensi what did they cell yeu? 12 0. rs that an asceptable prac.ice?
A They t2lz un that tiere wasn': enough 19 A, Seperal r
e Ln the poal, and that w0 were oul OF 3 3. Arc Row 1&ng were you <dumping chemicals
balance so we needed Lo iiterally bring it down o 21 dizectly icte 3 peol? hich seasons?
no chemicals whatacever and then bring it back up. z2 A, 1% was just that se4son.
Se lizerally we had to take all of the floating 23 a. seeys
chemicals out of the pasl. 4 A ves,
U. 5. LEGAL SUPFORT L. % LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 Q. And why isn't that proper protorol te 1 ¢ did the whole annual checking the chemicals on
2 direcily dump chemicals into a pool? 2 Lhe clipboard.
A, dell, you could -- well, ic's nol the 3 Q. And how many times a day did you check
apgroved way to put chemicals into a pool. 4 the pool?
Q. And approved by whom? 5 Al ‘fhree. Het me personaliy but it was
AL The Illinois OJepartment of llealth. 6 checked three times a day.
Q. Okay. 3o there are ¢ertain rogulations 7 Q. And how many lecatlons in the pool was
that mandate how you put chemicals into a pool? 8 it checked?
AL Correck. ] A, Four.
2. Aad which ways are approved hack in 2009 10 4. And wast did you do with the chemical
or which ways were approved Ln 20097 11 loga?
h. Wall, it was through vhemical feeders. 12 A They ramained in the aquatic center.
Q. Andd dicect dumping, was [t prohibited? 13 0. Ca you know where?
AL [ doa*t know if it was prohibited, 14 A, Jo.
o nidd you check che chemicals then once is Q. gthar than the chemical burns, did you
you were directly dumping them in? 14  have -- the alleged chemical burn incident, dia ysu
AL cn, yes., we did. 17 kawe sther iacidents where parents complained absut
. Aand yz) hest logs? 15 Lhe chemizals 1o the pool?
. *as. G AL Kids would yet rad eyes and say, ch,
o, And whers woild you <aen Those logs? 20 trere is tos mush calorine er whateve: in the peal,
A In the mhamicil geem on 4 cligboazd. 21 but that would e -- you ¥new, that’s pezscral
& 2. Anil wnere westd yon pui the resules 37 preference, and they are swimming for slx hevss in
2" ifter, you knsw, =0 many days? 23 the psol s Lhars would be complaines alaryg those
2 A Jhey just stayad on Lhe giipboard, and 24 Lires.
S LEGALSIUTIORT 1L 8 LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 Q. With respect to Culver's, you Sqid there
2 wdas o lease?
3 A. Yes.
4 Q. Who would Culver's pay Zor the lease
& rights te the ¢encession stand?
&6 A. The Village, [ believe.
T Q. Would they pay the Yillage directly or
a would they pay the aquatie center and you, in turnm,
9 wonld bring iz zo the Vlllage?
13 A, They were supposed to pay the Village
1t diracely.
12 Q. D6 you Xnow at any time whether or not
13 Culver's in 2009 was paying their lease?
14 A 200%. Their lgase was a percertage of
15 receipts.
16 3 Yes.
17 AL Okay. 50 1 =nowWw there was arn is=ue in
k] 2669 that thry were not paying. They kad ral pald
12 their perceatage of receips,
20 9. Aad when did you flrfst hecome awara of
23 trhac?
2z AL The first month they didn’t pay their
23 receipts, waich would have baen in Jjuly.
24 2. And what, if anything, dié yeu Z3 based
LS. LEGAL SUMPDEY
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1 B, The receipts, They printed off the
2 receipts for the day, the pluses and minuses -- or
3 nct the pluses and minuses. The recelpts, Lhe
4 tevenue axd expenses or the revenues.
5 Q. And then one lase area with respect to
13 the management of the pool. What is Virginia
7 Graeze Raker legislation?
] A. It is for the insulation of grates in
g all swimming facilIities, hot tubs, spas, and
¢ swimming pools. Lt is te prevent the grates or a
11 ckilé frem being --
12 Q. -- drowned by being sucked inte a
13 filter?
o4 A, -- sucked into a qrate. Se what it dic
] is for any pecol, they aeeded o have a curved grate
% ardfor a sustien -- an inLake and outtake syatem ir
7 place sa Lhat 1f ene drain does bevome covarad,
LE elogged, whaluver yoa will, the other ore wili
19 cortinue ts Flea.  [o Will new suck & child.
0 And what happened was -- T always gel
21 k13 rame w@rang -- Jim Aaker's granddaughter was
2z accually Lhe one wao was wilied so rhat's why,
23 rerce the Ach.
24 b virginia Graome Eavec. And that's a

Page 190
1 upon their failure to pay?
2 AL I did go to Mayer Humb because he is the
1 one that regotiated the leass with Culver's.
4 Q. Did you talk te the current
% administration atter you spoke with Mr. Hunt, the
6 then current adminlstratien?
7 A, Okay. Haybe I'm getting my years
B confused because 2009, thay psid their receipts.
9 2. Okay. Which year didn't they pay their
114 receiprs?
11 A, 2008 was the year that we had an issue,
12 SOLLY.
13 Q. And then in 2009, there were no issues
t4 with che collection?
13 A. As far as, no. We made them report
15 receipts e us on a datly hasis.
L7 Q. fnd to whom did they reporl. Lhose
i3 recaipis?
i% A Te the manager orn stafl it the end of
22 the day.
21 Q- And would they subsequentiy repstt to
22 you?
23 A. Iz went in a toider.
21 2. Wnaz wen: in a felder?
1. & LEGAL SUPPORT
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1 Faderal requirement?
k4 L Yes.
3 [+B And do you Xnocw when all pools -- ihe
4 drop dead date for compliance was?
5 A, It was just this year, T believe, was
[ Lhe dreo dead date.
1 Q. 20112
3 A. or 2010. I'm not sure exactly what rhe
9 drep dead date on the scature was now.
i Q. How, prior to leaving in 2009 to go on
1 fuclzugh, were the Virginia Graeme Bake: grates
12 installed for the pool for the nAext Jeason?
13 A. Ho.
L4 Q- ¥as there a con-ract executed or sigred
15 in arder to ensure that the poel had been compliant
16 with the Vieginia Graeme Raxer requirements prior
17 £z spening in 2307
15 L% Maz Lhere g QOnLiract’
io 2. veah. 2id you reiain the services ol o
0 company Lo install --
2% A Mot to iaztall.
22 [+ -- tne Yiryinia Graems Bakaer -- let ne
23 finush.
2 pid yau cetain, prior to going on
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1 furlough, a compary to install Virginia Graeme

2 Baker-cowpliart grates for the opening ot 2010

3 season?

+4 A Wo, I did not.

9 Q. Had you ever represconted to the parks

] and recreation Committee that the pool was

7 compliant with Yirginia Graeme Baker?

a Al No.

9 Q. Had you ever represented to the Board of
19 Trustees for the Village of Hawthorn Woods that the
11 pocl was complaint with Virginia Graeme Baker?

12 AL Ho. %e were working o be in

12 canpliance.

14 c. Hew, you s3aid you were speaking with
15 Halonen?

15 A Halegen, ves, and than thare was a

17 design [iam Lhat | was workong with to got

if correct -- the grates necded to te approved by the
19 [llinei¢ Pepartrent of Health. Even though it was
2 A Federal statute, the Illingis Department of

21 Health reeded to acprove whatever modifigat-cns we
22 were making Lo the facility.

23 Q. And prioz e going on furicugh, did you

3 submiz any plans to trhe Il__nias Cepartment of

LN LEGAL SUPPORT
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13 to the last page again.

z Mo Yos.

3 2. You were vecifying that all the --

4 Al Secend te the last page, yes.

S Q. vYou were verifying all the answers in

6 Exhibit 7 were true and correct?

7 A vYag.

€ MR. LANZTTO: That's ali [ have.

9 EXAMINNTICH
10 BY M&. MORRH:

11 Q. i just have a cougle guick clarifying
12 questions,

13 When you were talking before about
14 answering gquesticns regarding the transportacion of
13 cash to Lke ¥illage Hall frem the 4quatic cenzer.
16 Were there sccasinna during tne time period, §

17 think yoe saiz it was threo wecks or so0., batucen
L= the zime you were birst teld o get a police escezt
12 and the cime that yon «enk ¢a furleugh, when
20 someotn wonld cone from Yillage dall we ke agua.ic
21 gentaz To pick up cash?

2 AL tandy jfanszn 20 2Toasion wonld cerd and
23 get the cask, yves.

24 Q. weels yan £all us appreximately how many

November 8, 2051
Page 194
1 flealt: For approval?
2 A Ho, 1 did net.
3 Q. Just give me onc momenkt.
4 MR. LAMZITO: Mark these.
-] (WHEREUFON, certain documants were
[ marked Lynch Zxhibit MHos. & & 7,
ki for identification, as of
8 Hovember 8, 2011.)
9 BY MR. LAMZITO:
10 Q. Ma'am, have you seen thuese documents
il before?
12 AL 1 kave to look at them.
13 Q. Go ahead. That's fine,
14 A. Yeah, T have seen this No. 6. I'm
5 lookirg at it at the moment.
16 2. Locument No. §, ma‘am, <an you turr te
1? page. [t's not a page number. IL's the gecénd to
13 the last page. Is that your sigrature there,
13  ma‘am?
20 A Yes.
21 Q. AnRZ you're verifying cthat all the
72 answers are true and gorrect?
23 A Yes.
21 2, And if you can look at Exkibit 7, sazznd
[N L SUPPORT
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1 times that happener] in that thrge weeks?
2 A Probably twe.
3 C. And did you ever get any confirmdtior
4 from ¢ doctor or raport of a docter diagnesing that
5 the bsys who had complained about these burning
1) sungations the day thay were at the pool had
7 actually sustained chemical burns?
& A, Ho.
9 Q. Did you ever hear any report, whether
10 it's true er nol, as to what actually may have
11 happensd on that occasion?
1z A [ heard speculation that it was a prank
13 by some of the coys, and that there was 3om¢
14 Ben-Gay or icy Hot put in tne boys® shorts. I
15 couldr's eznfiun it.
16 3. It was enly boys that complained 23 [
L3 as you nrrirestasd?
18 A. Yes.
14 a. and e; Esr Hetith Han-'s sen, your
0 vrdazstaniing ~as averyzedy else’s hurnn Were
21 within the arey esvered sy Lhe baching snizs
2 a. *
23
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Page 197
1 FURTHER EXAMIHATION
2 8Y MR. LANZITO:
3 Q. I jusc have one question I forgoet to
4 ask.
3 What job do you currently hold?
& A I am an account manager fer a law fiem
7 in Lincolnshire.
a Q. which fixm?
9 A. The law offices of Neil, N-e-i-l,
10 Greene, G-r-e-eé-n-e.
11 Q. And what is your current salary?
12 A. 45,000,
i3 . And how long have you held that
14 posicion?
15 A Augusz 8th of this year.
16 Q. And prioe to that, where wére you
17 employed?
13 A Really going to -- SurePavroll. I just
1%  dida‘z like zhe job. SurePsyrell, S-v-r-e,
22 payroll. 1:z's all cne word.
21 Q. And from when te when?
22 A Two months after i was let g2 50 May o
23 August 3th of 2011.
24 2. What salavy did you earn?
L. 5. LEGAL SUPPORF
12y 236-8352
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1 CEPQSITICH ERRATA SHEET
2 In TUZ YMITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, HORTEIERH
El JLSTRICT &F ILLIWOIS, EASTERW DIVISIONR
4 KIMBIRLY LYHCH, )
5 Plainciis, ]
6 -v3- } Yo. I0-CV-5707
7 ¥illage OF HARTEORN #O0DS, )
g el al,, )
k] Cefendants. )
tc DECLARATICH UNCER PENALTY OF PERJURY
11 I declare under penalty of perjury that I
L2 have read the entire cranscript of my Depositicn
13 taken in the captioned matiter or the same has oeen
14 read to me, and the same is crue and accurate, save
15 and axcept for changes and/cr corroctions, if any,
16 as indicated by me on the CEPCSITICH ERRATA SKEET
o7 kereef, with the understanding that I off:r these
i chapyes 45 it w1ill wsler oath,
15
21 Sigred on tie . u3Y oL
21 L ML
22
22 KIMERRLY TY4TH

Page 198
1 AL 30,Ge0.
2 2. Have yeu aver =- since you have been --
3 A. 30,000, 35,030.
4 0. tHlave you applied for any director of
% parks and recreation position or aquatic certer
& manager pégition In any ether municipality since
7 being let go frem the Yillage of Hawthorn Wesds?
8 AL Mot applied for.
¢ HR. LANZITQ: That's ail I have,
10 MR. MQEAN: [ have no further guestions at
il this vime. We'll reserve.
12 FJRTHER CESPONZNT SALTH HOT.
13
14
13
15
17
14
L9
20
21
22
23
24
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Page 200
1 DEPOSITICH ERRATA SHEET
2 Page Me._ _ Line No._ Change vo: = .
3
4 Reason fer change:
5 Page Mo._ . Line Ho.___ Chapge vo: =~~~
&
7 Reason for change:
3 Page Mo._ _ _lLine No. _ Change to:
3
1t  Reason ler change:
11 Page MNo._ _ Line Wo.____Change rto:
12
12 feasen for change:
14 Page No._ Line Mo.___ Change zo:
E
16  Repsen £or changesi |
17 Page W=, __Line Ao, Change ot -
LE E—
a Feas¢n oz changa: N _
26 Pagoe Ho. Lzng lo. ____ Changa tas e
A _ e
22 Reason for change: -
23 SIGUATLURE
21
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Page 201 Page 202
1 DEPOSITION ERRATA SHEET 1 STRTE OF ILLINOLS ) ¢
2 Page Wo.____ Lira ta.____Change to: 2 )y 38:
3 3 COUNTY OFCOOK )
4 Reason for charge: 4 I, CATRICE #. PRINCE, CSR Jo. 84-093765,
5 (Page MWe.__ Lire Fo. __ Chamge to:i 5 2 Nosary Public within erd for the County of Gook,
6 6 state of Thlinois, ard a Certified Shorthand
7 Reason Zor change: % Reperte:r of said state, do hereby cerkify:
8 Page No._ _ Line No.  Change to:__ ., 8 That previous te the commencement ol the
9 9 examination of the witness, the witness was duly
10 Reason for change: 10 sworn to testify the whole truth concerning the
1l Page No._ Line Ho. _ Change to:__ 11 matrars hareins
12 12 That the fecregelng deposition transcrips
13 Reason tor change: 13 was reported stencgraphically by me. was thereafter
14 Page Wo.__ bine do._  Change te: 14  reduced to typewriting under my personal direction
15 15 and corstitutes a true egecord of the testimony
16 Reason far change: 16 given and Lhe proceedings hads
17 bage Mo, Line Mo. _ Change Tor Vi That tha said deposibion was taken
B -1 beiore e at the time and place specified;
22 Reason for chanje: - - Thai T am not a relaziva or employee or
20 Page He._ Line No.  Change wo: .. 26 atTozney 3r counsel, ner a relative or employee of
21 21 such attorney or counsel for any of the parties
22 Feasen fer shaage: 22  heratz, ner Laterested directly or irdirecely in
23 STGRATURE: _ _ DATE: 23 the cutcome of tnis actien.
74 KIM3ZALY LYHCH 24
L. & LEGAL SUPFORT I & LEGAL SUPPORT
{312) 236-RI52 {312) 136-5352
h W "
et Lo o November 8. 1011
ao hereutte sot ™ Page 204
; WITHESS angeser: * enis 2188 4% ! trpes
it ‘ ; 111ineis 2
1 ice at cnicagt
, mond of ALEHE " 3 HIMBERLY LYNCK EXAMINATICH
4 of Hovemdet « 20 1 BY HR. LANZITO 1
N ) BY MR. MORAN 195
. o 6;1;_“,’;_ 6 BY MR. LANZITO 137
N C,]IEMCZ . county [njnO'!-s' !
coa¥ 06’20‘3. B EXHIBITS
9 LYNCH £XHIBIT HARKED FOR TID
165 H HO, 1 100
? 1 KO. 2 122
12 KO. 3 127
13 [ 3] 129
14 835 135
15 wos. 6 & 7 184
15
17
i3
12
20
21
22
23
24
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